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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of South City
Projects (Kolkata) Limited, (“the Company”)which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 31" March, 2018, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policics and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “the
Standalone Ind AS Financial statements™). .

Manapement’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial staterments that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015,as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other imregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which ate required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and read with the Rules issued there under and the Order issued under
section 143(11) of the Act.

We have conducted our audit of the Standslone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing specified under Scction 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial staternents are free from
malenal misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a truc and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March,
2018, and its Profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its Cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The Comparative Financial information of the Company for the year ended 31" March,2017
and the transition date opening Balance Sheet as at 1™ April,2016 included in these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements, are based on the previously issued Statutory Financial Statement
prepared in accordance with Companies(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the
predecessor auditor, whose report for the year ended 31® March,2017 and 31" March, 2016
dated 29 June,2017 and 8" September,2016 respectively expressed an Unmodified Opinion on
those Standalone Financial Statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles, adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
l. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order to the extent applicable,
2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best
for the purpose of our audit;
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31™ March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31* March, 2018 from being &ppmnte:d as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
aceordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statemnent- Refer Note 32(b) to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

if. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foresceable losses; and

iii. There i3 no such sum which needs to be transfemred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,.-329088E

{(Radhakrishan Tondon)
Parimer

Membership No. 060534

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 27th June, 2018
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VL

VIL

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of Cost Records
under section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained.
{a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Value added Tax, Goods &
Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in amears as at 31" March, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date on which they became payable. During the year, the
company did not have any dues towards duty of excise and duty of custom;
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no matenal
dues in respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Service Tax, Goods & Service
Tax and Cess except the following:
MNume of Nature of j;m;]:tn]::dfr Floancial Year to Forum where
the Statute e ’Em s which the the dispute
(Ry. Tn Lacs) amount relates s pending
" ; Joint Commissioner
Finanece Act Service Tay 220 2002-03&2003-04 Service Tax{Appeal),Kolkata
Financo At | gorvise Tux §6.27 2006-0742010-11 | AppellateTribunal Kolkata
Finance Act Service Tax 11.5% 2010-11 Appellsie Tribunal Kolkuta
Finsnce Act Service Tax 397.42 2007-08&2011-12 | Appellate Tribunal Kolkata
. j 2007-08102011-12 | Commissioar,
Finance Act Service Tax 8.95 Service Tax{Appeal),Kolkta
Penalty wart JomiConmissianer,
Finance Act Demand 8.20 2002-03&2003-04 | Service Tax{Appeal) Kolkata
of Service Tax
Pemalty w.r.t Appellate Tribunal Kolkata
Finance Acl Demand 6627 2006-07&2010-11
OfF Sorvice Tax
Penalty w.r.t Appellate Tribunal Kolkata
Finence Act Demand 429.64 2007-08&2011-12
Of Service Tax
Penalty w.r.t Commissioner,
Finance Act Demand 9.95 2007-08&2011-12 | Service Tax{Appexl) Kolkata
of Serviee Tax
Employeesinsurance
Employee State Employee State
Insurance Act Insurance Dues %62 A Conrt Knilas

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause () of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act")

We have sudited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of South City Projects
(Kolkata) Limited (“the Company™) tc the extent records available with us in conjunction with
our gudit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for the year
ended 31" March, 2018.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting crileria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance note
on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibiliies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Aet, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in sccordance with the
Guidence Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable fo an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial contrels over financial reporting, assessing the risk that & matenal
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intermnal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LTMITED
CIN No. - UZi0i9WH1995PLCO71252
Balance Sheet ag ot 31st March, 2018

Rin Lacs
- Notcs Agat Ay ox Azat
31032008 | 31032017 | 01.04.2016
ASSETS
MNon-Current Assets
Property, Phnt and Equipment 4.1 15,748.25 13,254.83 | 1434038
Capital Work-in-Progress 42 3256.43 439.05 309,12
|lnta.ng]:r1: Assits 4.3 497 101 220
[Intanpible Assers under Development 44 = | - 1345
[Findncial Assens
| {1) Invesements 5.1 42,089.24 4235951 | 1894126
() Trade Reccivables 5.2 211.09 2 42682
(€) Lerans 53 12,018.33 3848 | 2235302
{d} Ocher Financial Asscts 5.4 1,699.74 1,704.79 164406
Other Noo-Curcent Asscis 7 4 48741 399431 31.550.95
Total {A) 79,515.46 | 6595070 | 01,672.14
Cument Asscts |
lwentoncs 8 1723407 | 1728049 21, 23641
Finaneial Assets
{#) Trade Receivables = 1,100.01 285809 TELS4
{B} Cash and Cashi Equivalents | a9l 7080 628.69 385.16
{c) Bank Balanevs other than () above 9.2 055 | 052 048
| {d) Loans 23 1.400.29 | 4,206.06 181227
| (&) Other Vipanciat Assers 54 178.31 47444 14197
Current Tax Assets (Meg) 61 996.21 | 264.16 45602
1Other Current Assers 7 1,599.21 ; 40741 247.69
i Total (B)| 2157045 | 26,918.85 | 2776154
Totol Asscrs {A-I-B}i 10209451 | 9287056 | 89,433.68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ' |
Equity i | .
Equity Share Capird ) 450,07 45007 450.07
Crther Equiry ,on 38.301.55 40,014,601 3262551
Taeal (A) 33,751.62 40,4564.67 | 33,145.58
|Liakilities
!Mon-Current Linhilitics
Ii"'mu.m:u] Lishilifies
{a) Bortowings 121 428684 1275666 | 15,18846
(b} Other Financial Liabilices 122 252337 183641 | 402241
Trovisions 13 4L 11526 93,63
Defernad Vax Lisbilitics (I¥ee) 6.2 1,401.27 1,205.04 590,89
Toral {B) 845259 16,913.37 | 1989530
iCurrent Liabilides
| Finoneial Liahilities ;
{a) Borrowings 121 3070001, 2476138 13309276
{b) Trade Payables || 14 4,393,01 560429 323688
(<} Other Financial Liabiliries { a2 1683943 T4T6.51 5,651.61
Orther Current Liabilites 15 288797 161472 14,094.07
Provisions 13 70.23 3562 17.3%
Total (C} 54,890.70 36,452.52 | 3639271
Totul Equity and Linblides (A+L+C) 102,094.91 92870.56 | B9,433.68
Significant Accounting Policics 2-3
"Ihe accompanying notes arc an intcal part of thy financibl satements.

As per our repart of vvin date

For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY
Chartered Accountints
Firm Regrstration No < 3208815

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

Membeship No- 060554
Tlac: Kolkat

Daged: 27th June, 2018

Frar and an bohalf of Board of Dinctons

south City Projects (Kolkata) Lid. South City Proj
\___5_1-._}:—.‘-"'-—'.
<< S -

Nirantor

Com

et

For South City Projacts (Kolkata) Ltd,

Kolkata) Lid.

y Secretary



SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
CIN MO - D2 9% B1295PLCA71252
Saatcment of Profit & Loss for the year cnded 31 5t March, 2018

% inLlace
| INotes | 2017-18 Wwerr |
INCOME ,! ,'
‘Revenue from Operatons 18 860212 2584854 |
ICHher Income 19 504267 494282
| Totel Income 14,634.79 30,791.76

EXPENSES §
IConstruction Cost 20 193825 8,718.27
Puschases of Traded Goolds - 9268
(Incronsc)/ Tecoease in Inventodies of Finished Goods, Work-in-rogress 21 397.39 4,187.00
Employee Bencfits Expenses 22 71891 447.87
Finance Coats 23 3,655.62 3.886.37
| Depreciation and Amordsaton Expenses 24 982.85 1,111.38
iOther Expenscs a5 4.800.30 2488.52
I Total Expenscs 1250232 | 2115218
| Brofit Before Tax, 2153247 9,639.58
|T'ax Expense '
Current Tax | 613.81 1,700.00
Dicfermed Vax 6.2 198.51 616,35
Income Tax of Badier Years 5388 o
866.20 2316.35
Prafit for the Year {T)| 1,266.27 732323
Qther Comprehensive [ncome:
Items that will not be reclogaified to profit or koss in subsequent perlods:
Re-meastivement gains and (osses) on defined benefit obligations (6.58) {6.34)
Incume rax effect theeeal 228 220
Other compeehengive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax (1I) {4,340 {4.14)
Total comprehensive income for the year, nct of tax {1 +1I) 126197 7315.09
Lisrnings per Raquity Shazoof T 10 cach a7
Hasic & Dilured 2814 16271
|
{Significans secountng policics 23 |
i The accompanying notes are an intepral part of the Arancial statermemt, |

Ag per oug feport on even date

lFor AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY
Chartered Accountanes

L o
Radhnkrushan Tendon
Partigr

Membenhip No- (060534
Place: Kolkars

Drageud: 27eh June, 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directars

Diractor

Firm Registration Mo 329085E South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.  South City Proje Ikata} Ltd.
“'-—--..n_L.-——-'—"'" ¥

e e
Director

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.

o Y‘SEE;"BTBW



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Exuity for the year ended 3151 March, 2018

a. Equiry Sharc Capiral:

Euquity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Mo, of shares %in Lacs

Aq acl April 2016 4 500,700 450,07

lsstre of sharo capital - -

A 31 March 2007 4,500,700 450,07

lestie of share capital - -

At 31 March 2018 4,500,700 450.07

b, Cther equity

Fur the yene ended 31st Mosch, 2018 ?in Lacs
| | Reserves & Surplus ' Twems of OCL |

Particulars Securitios Premium | Retained General FVIOCI | Touwl Equity

| Account Eamings Reserve Reserve =

As at 1 April 2017 £60.00 1935874 | 2000000 (4.14) 40,014.60
Trofit for the yeor - 1,266.27 = 126627
Sl':}liih:;mmmpmhm-w income for ) I ‘ (4.30) (430)
Total Comprehenaive Income for - ‘ 1,266.27 [ - (4.30) 1,261.97
the year

Dividends (Noté 16) . - (2.475.39) . {247539)
‘Dividensl  distdbutdon w@x  on - = ]

dividend (Note 16) ‘ (o) l (e
vAx ar 3 March 2018 i 660.00 | 17,649.99 20,000.00 | {8.44) | 3830055 |
For the year ended 31st March, 2017 Tin Lacs

n Reserves & Surplus Ttems of OCL
Particulers Securitics premium Retained Geneal FVTOO Tata! Equity
Account camings Hesorve reserve

As et lat April 2016 660.00 12,035.51 20,000.00 - 3269551
| Profir for the year - 7323.23 - G 7.323.23
i{3ther comprebensive income for - . - (.14) @1 4}'
(the year

Total Comprehensive Incame for - 732323 B (4.14) 731809
I"']m Tk i

ividends (Note 18) " X = !
\Dividend  distribuion  =x  on)| - . . -
{Lividend {Now 16)

{As at 31 March 2017 660,00 19,358.74 | 20,000.00 (4.14) 40,014.60
A4 perour report on even date

lor AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY

Chartered Accourtants

For and on behalf of Boand of Direcrons

ltiem Registration No : 3292:33 south City Projects (Kolkata) Lid. South City Projects ficlkata) Lid.
\-..,____L_}-:F—"""
e _—
Radhakdshan Tondon riractor Nirerinr
Partner
Membership No- 060534
e el in For South City Projeces =

Dated: 27th June, 2018




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018

RinLacs
. Ay at As mt
SIS —|_ ILO32018 3103.2007
A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: [
Meg profit before tax Tidzey 063058
Adjusemient to reconcile profit befare tax 1o net cash llow
Depreciation & Amortisation cxperse SB285 1,118.89
Finance costs 165403 305837
Share Drematedialisaton & 5177 Hapenaes 022 {udd
Sundry Batances Wrirten OFF 11511 17.55
Dividend Reccived from non cudrent invesments (2268 {B.ET
Profit on-sale of non current investmaents {1732 (106,23
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Propery, Plant & Eguipment 85063 {32
Sundey Balances Wrirten Rack {0.4%} {20.91)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets (2,589.77) [2.290.63)
Intecest income (1,035.55) (L1683
Operating profit before worldng capiwl changes 4,080.46 10,139,70
Adjustments for- {
Drecrcase/ (Increase) in Working Capital ;
Inwentades 55.42 1546.02
Tradi Recovaliles L1171 (201445
*F'rade Payables (1,325.80) 237077
Loans, Depositd and Oty inancial Agsets (5,196.60) 13,906.84
Orther Cuerent and Won Cunreat as2eis {1.594,90) 200692
Cither Fipancial Lishilities 1004091 (30110
Provizions 153.88 3352
Chher Current and Non Cunrert Liabiline LF73.35 {LZ477.35)
Cash gencrated in operations 9,407.84 17,600.77
Incame Tax Paid (net of refund) 631.00 ]
Net Cash inflow fnim: Opemiting Activities §,776.34 17,217.51
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Chvidierd Received 2168 8.87
Inrerest Received 1,035.59 216833
Sale of Property, Mant & Dguipment 512 4164
Bale of Mon ourrent Invettments 2M7.38 2041010
3,980,717 4,255.54
Leso:  Purchase of Propery, Moot & Hyquipmen T,153.05 1037
Purchase of Mon currenr [nvesrments - B3,10250
Share Dematenalisaton & S171 Exponse 0 050
Met cash Oow from [ovesting Activitics (3,172.50) {18,952.43)
C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 1
Loan Taken/ {Repaid) 458.81 503682
Dividend paid fncluding net dividend distibation ) {2975.01) - |
lateress paid (3,656.03) (3.958.37)
Met cash fow from Financing Activities j {6,162.24% 157845
Wt inercase / (decreasc) in cath and cash egudvalents (A+B+C) (557.8%) 24353
Cash and Cagl Feguivalenta at the beymning of tie yer (Refer nowe-9.1) G269 Ig516
Cash arid Cash Equivalerits ot the end of the year (Refee note-9.1) 70.80 628,69

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.

e
Niractor

South City Projects (w

e ——
Director



SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (KROLEATA) LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2013 (Contd.)

Mores ¢

{a) The sbove Cash Flow Scement has been propared undee the “Indirect Mothod” as set our in the lndian Accounting
Sandard (Ind AS - 7) - Statement af Cash Flow.

() . Cin Lacs
| . As nt A5 ok
L Pariculoss 31032018 | 31.03.2017
(avh and Cash Equivalants comprises of ‘
Lash in kand 507 7.55
Balances with banks:

= On current necounts 65.46 £20.55
— Dieposies with original matusity of less than three months 0.27 025 |
Cosh and Cash Equivalants in Cash Flow Statement 70.80 628.59 |

(c) Amendment to Ind AST

The amendments to Ind As-7 Cash Flow Stements requircs the entities to provide disclosure thar enable wsers of financial
statcments to evalute chanpes in libilitics arising from Gnandng sctvitics including both changes assing from cash fMows
and ‘non-cash changes suggesting inclusion of a roconciliafion berween opening and glosing balances in the balance sheer for
Yabilitis arising from financing actvitics w meet the disclosure ccquinment This amendment hes become effective from
01.04.2017 and the requirsd disclosure is made below. Theee i no other impact on the financial statements duc to this

gmenlment .
Mon « Cash Changes

- N i I Current/ Non -

As at Fair Value As ot

Particulars Cash Flow | Current

i 7 2 1.03.2018
I ‘ ..31 03.201 | Changen . Classif i
{Borrowings - Non Current 1274949 (B.479.93)| - = 426956
{Other Finandial Fisbilites 591537 | 9.940.21 (6004} - 15,795.54
| Barowings - Cucrent 1694221 | 619222 - - | 23,3443 |
Ay per our report of even date Forand on behalf of Board of Dircctors

For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid. south City Projects fKplkata) Lid.
Chartered Avcountunts

. ; !i el
Fi:m]lcgm{amnﬂu: CE____.- —
T —
Diractor Diractor
Radhskrishan Tondon
Pariner
Membership No- 060534 For SO0 ooy 1Y
Place: Kolkata I

Dated: 27th June, 2018




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31+ March, 2018
1. Corporate Information

South Ciry Projects (Kolkata) Limited (referred to a3 “the Company™) is a public limited company established
in 1995 under the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is enpaged in the business of real estate
development and also provides rental services, muintenance services which are related to the ovenll
development of real estate business, The Company is domiciled in India and has its registered office at 315,
Prince Anwar Shah Road, Jadavpur, Kolkata — 700068,

2. Basis of Preparation of financial statements
a) Compliance with INDAS

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified undee the section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP), These
financial statements for the year ended 312 March 2018 ate the first financial statements which the Company
has prepared in sccordance with Indian Accounting Standacds (“Ind AS”) including the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. Refer to note 38(1) and 38(2) for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors on
27.06.2018.

b} Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on poing concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historieal cost
basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting principles.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a3 newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an esisting accounting standard requires a change in the aceounting policy
hitherto in use.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

3.1. Operating Cycle

Based on the niature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as sixty months for
ongoing projects and twelve months In case of completed projects for the purpose of current- noncurrent
classification of assets and liabilities. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-curtent 25
per the Company’s normal operating eycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule IIT to the Companies
Act, 2013,

3.2. Foreign Cumrencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Company ace measured vsing the currency of the primary
‘economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation cutrency.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements asatand for the year ended 31% Macch, 2018

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Company at spot rates at the functional
currency spot rate (Le. INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and
lizbilines denominated in foreign currencies are ranslated at the funcrional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setdement of tansactions in foreign cutrencies and
from the wanslation of monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Mon-monetary items that ate measured in tenns of histoncal cost in a foreign carrency are translated using
the exchange mtes at the dates of the inital transactions, Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a forelpn currency are translated using the exchange rates ar the date when the fale value was détermined.
The gain or loss ansing on wanslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognidon of the gain or loss on the change in fair valoe of the item (Le, ansladon differences on items
due to fair valuation is recogaised in OCI or profit or loss, respectvely).

3.3, Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction berween market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the tmnsaction to sell the asset or teansfer the liability takes place either:

#) In the principal market for the asset or linbility, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabilicy.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that macket participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assurning that macket parucipants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 non-finandal asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another marker participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropsdate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are avaiable to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is messured or disclosed in the financial statements are
cateporised within the fair value hierarchy, descrbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

2} Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for ideatical assets or liabilides
b) Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
¢) Level 3 — Valuadon techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assers and liabilides that are recognised in the financial statements on 8 recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant 10 the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Fer the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and lizhilides on the
basis of the nanure, characteristics and dsks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above

3.4, Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management 1o make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabiliries and the disclosure of contingent liabilities during and at the end of the reporting pedod. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledpe of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjusiment to the
carying amounts of assets or liabilities in futute periods.

3.5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shore-term deposits
with an onginal matunty of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant rsk of changes in
value.

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has elected 1o adopt the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment under the Indian
GAAP 35 on 1* April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS,

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of acquisition, on current
cost basis less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price
and directly attdbutable cost of btinging the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducred in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost indudes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Machinery spares which can be uscd only in connection with an item of fxed asset and
whose use is expected to be irregular are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of the pondpal item
of the relevant assets. When significant parts of plant und cquipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them scparately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant pact initially recognised is derecognised upon
dizposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss adsing
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying smount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecopnised.
Depreciation is provided on written down value method over the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment as estimated by management. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013 depreciation is provided on promta basis on written down value method at the rates detennined based
on estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment where applicable. However, leasehold land is
depreciated over lease period on straight line basis.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprediation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.7, Intangible Asscts

The Company has elected to adopt the carrying value of Intangible Assets under the Indian GAAP as on 1¥
April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS.

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits adsing out of the assets flow to the
enterprise and are amortised over their useful life of three years. Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial fecognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are castied at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and aze charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year during which such expendinice is incurred.

3.8. Capital work-in-progzess and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost includes land,
related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, bomowing costs and other direct

expendimre.
3.9 Investment Property

Management has assessed applicability of Ind AS 40 - Invesanent Property to the property held to eam
income from rentals, In assessing such applicability, management has considered the ownership of assets,
tecms of license agreement, various services provided to the licensee etc. The Company considers these
other services as significant in addition to the charged. Based on such assessment, the management has
considered the mall property as owner occupicd property and hence classified as Property, Plant &
Equipment,

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that ace largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current macket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are wmken into account, if available.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

3,iL Inventories

Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the [ower of cost and net
realisable value, Cost of inventories comprise all cost of purchase including cost of land, bezrowing cost,
development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. The-
cost, in general, is determined using weighted average cost method.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 319 March, 2018

Contract cost incurred refated to furure actvity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it 15
ptobable that they will be recovered during the contrace pedod. Such costs represent the amount due from
customer and are often classified as Construction wotk-{n-proptess.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

312, Reveouwe and Other Income

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured ar the faic value of the consideration received/receivable
net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria o each narure of revenue
transaction s set-out belows

Principles of Ind AS 18 in respect of sale of goods for tecognising revenue, costs and profits from
transactions of real estate which are in substance similar to delivery of goods when the revenue

recognition process is completed; and

In case of real estate sales where ageeement for sale is exeeuted for under construction properties,
revenue in respect of individual contracts is recopnised when performance on the contract is considered

to be completed.

Intecest Income 1s recognised using the effective interest method and 15 included under the head ‘Other
Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s dght to receive dividend is established.

All other incomes are recognised on accrual basis,

3.13. Employee Benefits
I, Defined Contribution Plan
Provident Fund
Conmibutions in respect of all Employees are made to the Regional Provident Fund as per the
provisions of Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and are charged to

the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when setvices are rendered by employees. The Company has no
obligation other than the contrbution payable o the Regional Provident fund.

II. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratity

Granity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plin. The liability
recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined
benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments for unrecognized acruacial gains
or losses and past service costs, The defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the balance sheet
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31¢ March, 2013

of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by
reference to market yields on govemment bonds that have terms to maturity approsimating the terms of
the related liability. Current Service cost and Interest component on the Company’s defined benefit plan
is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resultng from re-measurements of the
liability are included in other comprehensive income.

III. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Company treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave are carried forward as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such lonp-term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valvation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Current Service
cost and Interest component adsing out of such valuation is included in employee benefits expense
Actuarial pains/losses resulting from re-measutements of the liability are included in other
comprehensive income. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the
extent it does not have an uncondidonul right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reportng
date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a
period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current lability.

314, Leases

The dererminadon of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the amrangement conveys & dght
to use the asset or assets, even if that rdght is not explicitly specified in an amnpement.

For armangements entered into prior to 1 Apal 2016, the group has determined whether the
arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and drcumstances existing on the date of transition.

Ara lerree

A lease is classified et the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lease that wransfers
substantally all the risks and rewards incdental to ownetship to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at the fair value
aof the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance chasges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recopnised in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are dircctly

Attributable to qualifying assets, in which case th:_f,r are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s
geaeral policy on the bﬂ:mmng costs (See note 3.17). Contingent rentals ace recopnised as expenses in
the perods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
ceriainty that the Company will obmin ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shonter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

i ' ects [@E] Ltd.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements asat and for the year ended 31% March, 2018

Operating lease payments (net of any incentives recelved from the lessor) are charged to Statement of
Peofit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the Iease unless the payments are strucrured
to increase in line with expected general inflation o compensate for the lessor’s expected inflatonary
cost increases.

s a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not wansfer substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease s recognised on &
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
armanging an operating lease are added to the cacrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Continpent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are camed.

3.15. Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax lsws prevailing in the respective tax
jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute thé amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, 4t the reporting date.

Dreferred tax is provided using the Dalance Sheet methed, on temporacy differences arsing between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Gnancial statements at the
reporting date. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arizes from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a wansacton other than a business combinatdon that at the time of the tansaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantally enacted by the end of the reporting perod and
are expected to apply when the related deferred incoms 1ax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
Hability is sectled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to udlise those temporary differcnces and
logses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is revicwed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no looger probable that suffident taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 2 legelly enforceable dght to offset current
tax assets and liabilides and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authorry.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offser where the entity has 2 legally enforceable right to offset
and intends ecither to settle on a net basis, or to tealise the asset and settle the lability simultanecusly,
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recopnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and sccounting
income orginating during the curtent year and reversal of tming differences for the carlier years.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the mx laws enacted or substantively enacted at the

teporting date.
3.16. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a eesult
of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to sertle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the smount of the cbligation. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when approprate, the risks specific to the Liability, When discounting i used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or & present obligation that is not recognized because it is not prabable that
an aurflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company docs not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

3.17. Bormowing Costs

Botrowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the exient they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs. Borrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining 10 the
pesiod from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset
up 1o the date the asset is ready for its intended use is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of
Borrowing Costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended
pediods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing
costs dre expensed in the period they occun

318, Eamings per Share

Basic Barnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atributable 1o
equity shareholdess by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pesiod.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributsble 1o equiry shareholders and the weighted average oumber of shares cutstanding during the
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shazes.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018
3.19. Financizal Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 2 financial asset of one entity and a finandial
liability or equity instrament of another entity.

A. Financial assets
i. Inidal recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Anancial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transacton costs that are atmibutable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

it. Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

a. Debtinsouments st amortised cost
b. Equity instuments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash Aows, and
s Contractunl terms of the asset give fise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding,

After initial measucernent, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective inrerest rate (EIR) method Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisabon
is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss. This category generally applies o trade and other recemvables.

Equity invesiments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measuced at fair value other than equity investments
measured at deemed cost on first time adoption of Ind AS as sec out in Note 37, Equity instruments
which are held for teading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI o FVITPL. The Company makes such election on 1o
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, ate recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to Statement of Profit and Lass, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Exquity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Peofit and Loss.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

iti. De-recognidon
A fnancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a finandial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecopnised when:
® The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
® the Company has wransferred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asser

iv. Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:
® Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are messured at amortised cost eg., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowsnce on Trade
receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track chanpes in credit risk
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance baged on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, dght
from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulung from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instcrument. ECL is the difference between all contracrual cash flows that are due 1o
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive,
discounted at the original EIR. When estmating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the Bnancial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options} over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then
the entity i5 required to use the remaining contractual term of the finandal instrument

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhaneements that aze integral
to the contracmual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss sllowince
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historcally observed defaule
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At
every reporting date, the historical observed default mtes are updated and changes in the forward-
locking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the smtement of profit and loss (P&L). This smount is reflected under the head ‘other
cxpenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
biclowe
®  Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off eriterda, the group does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross canying amount.

For assessing increase in credit nisk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit sk characteristics with the objective of fadlitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a tmely basis.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

B. Financial liabilities
i. Initial recognition and measutement
All financial liabilities are recopnised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, investment in subsidiacics and joint ventures, net of directdy
atuibutable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include wade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, finzncial gnarantee contracts and derivadve Anancial inscuments.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial kabiliies depunds on their classificadon, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon inidal recognition as at fair value through profit o loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This catepory also includes derivatve fnancial ingtruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedping instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Guins or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Labilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of cecognition, and only if the criteda in Ind AS 109 are satisfed. For
Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fatr value gains/ losses attcibutsble to changes in own credit risks are
recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the curnulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in faic value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing Joans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest mte (EIR) method, Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into sccount any discount or premium on scquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recopnised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for doubthd debis.

s
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements asatand for the year ended 31« March, 2018
Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company poor to the end
of financial year. The amounts ar¢ generally unsecured, Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within the Company’s operating cycle, They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amottised cost using the effective interest
methed,

Financial guarantes contracts

Financial puarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that reguire a payment to ke
made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified borrower fails to make 2
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumnulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A finandal liability is derecognised when the obligaton under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
cxpires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different verms, or the temms of an existing lisbility are substantally modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying smounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lishilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable lepal right to offser the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.20. Operating Segments

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Company, approved by the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment of
pecformance of the Company. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their
meetings and level of finality of theic decsions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating
Decision Maker function is being performed by the Business process and Risk Management
Committee. The Anancial information presented to the Business process and Risk Management
Committee in the context of results and for the purpeses of approving the annual operating plan is on
a consolidated basis. The Company's business activity falls within three reportable business segment
viz. ‘Real estate projects development’, ‘rental activities' and ‘others - unallocated”. The sales being
opemted wholly in the domestic market, the financial statement are reflectve of the informaton
required by Ind AS 108 “Opemting Segments”.

3.21, Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs
as per the requirement of Schedule ITI to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Lol Sy Proects (Rokaty) v, South Clty P‘ioiewun.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Moten to Fingneial Stateonents for the year ended 3lsc March, 2008

Muate 4.1 - Propery, Plant and Equipment (Current Yeor) Tin Laes
[ Panticulars | P _ Grows Block at Cost i F Depeeciation / Amostisativn Net Block
Aa at Additona® Disposals [ Asar Az nr Depn For | DHsposals / Asar As ue Agar
oLoszon7 | “°7 Adjusiments | 31.03.2018 | 00042017 | the Year | Adjusumenn | 31032018 | 31032018 | 31032017
leaschold Land 981.09 | L 9809 | 1490 | 14.90 - |z 95129 066,19
Puldings = = T
Operating Lease 11,229.19 | 335335 82867 | 1375377 513.85 499.63 L0348 | 1274029 | 10,7154
Others 13,2 = < 1320 0.89 0.60 L9 LTI 1231
Plant & Equipments | _1g1824| 31610 71| 19326 38231 30541 - 72| L2449 | 12359
| Fire Protection System 852 AT T4 96.43 - . B33 - &% 8805 2852
Elccrical Insealiaion & liquipments | 339.87 | 28446 - 624,53 15204 91.98 : 244,04 380,49 187.81
Furmimure and Fixturcs 88,36 7148 13.74 146.08 15 18.83 - 5L42 94.55 .77
| Vehicles - . >
Firgince Lease 1338 032 065 L3S 4.15 375 012 7.78 24.07 2.03
| Othens 73| 1w 331 36.26 ses| 74 ooa| um 2443 22.05
Office Legripment 28,56 20365 | ) T02| 638 36,87 b 33.67 128,35 2188
TOTAL 14,368.08 | 4,335.67 §65.85 | 17,837.86 |  1,1331 977.51 10| 2,069.61 | 1574825 | 13,254.83
* Additions includes Rs 41B3.10 lacs {rowards South Ciry Mall Txtension) of which Re. 8517 lacs i mterest, tmasierred from Capicd Work in Progerss:
MNote 4.2 - Capital Work in Progress (Current Year)
(o Particulars Gross Block at Cost |
Az ar 3 % 3 M ag
oLo420yy | Additians | Capitaisation | 5, ys 2n1ge
South City Mall Extension © 45| 700048 418310 | 3,256.43
TOTAL - 43005 | 700048 | 418300 | 375643
= Includes Rs. 12657 kics towards mterest,
Note 4.3 - Intangible Assew {Cument Year)
Porticulars  Gross Block at Cost — Depreciation / Amortisatien Net Block
As al Additions Dinposals / As st A a1 Depa Foe | Disposaln / As at As at As an
o DipdamMr | Adpmiments | 3.03.2018 | 00042017 | the Yeas | Adjustrocnrs | 31052018 | 31032018 | 31.03.2017
"Campuree Sofewure 15,99 5.64 | 534 1102 4.97 031
TOTAL = = 1599 5.68 5.34 L2 497 | s

seuth City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.
M e e B e
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Mates 10 Flnancial Siatements for the vear ended 3 Mosch, 2018

MNote 4.1 - Property, Plant and Equipment {Previous ¥ear) ¥in Locs
" Pariculam s Grows Blockat Cost Deprociation / Amoration | Net Block
Az my
< Disposals / Anar Asar For the Disposala / fa ot As at Asa
010420 Additions :
L s ﬁsrm__uih Adjuiments | SLOS2017 | 01042016 Year | Adjossments | SLOSINY | SLOSIOT | OLM4Z0I6
Leaschold land 98109 - o . 1490 5 1090 | 96619 981.09 |
Buldings T i . S e B I || S| [
Operating [ease 1.229.19 =L - | 12919 : 51385 - _ 5185 10534 ) 1122919
Others 843 1293 B21| 10 - 089 : 0| BR| 848
Plant & Hqupments 161828 : | aemaa| . 38231 T sesi| 12359 161824
Fire Protection System 2852 I N T I = ol — .= L - g52| = 52
Tflectrical Installation & Exquipments 33827 1.60 - | 33987 . 15206 158206 |  187.81 3382
Fumiture and Fixmires B3.56 4.70 - | 8838 - 3259 = 3259 55,77 GG
Vehicles - B . =
Finanee Lease 1318 : S| 1as - 415 = 45| 90| 1348
Others - 1774 10.96 097 ;a3 . 5.68 - 5.68 ;205 1774
Office Lguigwent : 2199 — €61 | s . 678 . 678 C2gs| 2199
TOTAL 14,340.36 36.86 918 | 14368.04 - RILE: ] - raBal| 32483 | 1434036
Note 1.2 - Capital work in Progrees (Previous Year)
T Paniculars Grosa Blockas Cost
Az at Additions Disposals / As at
01.04.2016 Adjustments | YLOS201Y
SC Mall lixtension | 39912 | sR42 1849 | 439.05
TOTA. T e 58.62 1869 | 439.05
MNoic 4.3 « Intangible seicis (Previous Year)
T 7 Paniculam Gross Block at Cost I- == S | Depreciation [ Amortsation - ” Mei Block |
As e Additions - As ot As ail . Asat Az at As
0L04.2016 {refes Disposala / | 3032017 | oroaznte | Tore H_ﬂ.ﬁi&:_ 3207 | 3032017 | OLD420I6
note 4.5 helow) . N & .n..nn.u.- . § ] by ' e e g et
Computer Sofrware B 2% o e 1 568 T T ses| s 0 220
£ — ) I BN ) IS R B O —

. . -l ses| 1] 220
South City Projects (Kolkata) L1a. South City Prolects §
s =

Director Diractor
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Nowe 4.4 - Intangible Asgetn Under Development (Provious Year)

Priticolien ~ fGross Blockat Cost__
As nl Agag
| ovpszong | Addidons | Capitslisation | 5 pyagp
Farvision ERP o 13.45 SN S |
TOTAL = D45 | | 1348
Note 4.5

Fer Peopedy, Plant and Lquipment, Intiagible 2sstes 25 on st Apdl 2018, L, the date of ransidon ro Ind A%, the company bas wed Indian GAAP valur a5 deemicd cosr as permireed by [nid AS 101- First
Tare: Adoption . Accondingly the ne Block as per Indian GAAL 28 on Tue Apeil 2016 has been comsidered an Geoms Block under lad-AS. The accwmulated depreciaden so netted off as at st Apal 2006, & as

below,
a} Propesty, Plant and Equipment
L Accumulated
Parnculars Graes block depreciation Met hiock
Leaschold Land i 1,087.81 _10672|  9sLDY
Buildings E —_— Brase=ne
Operating Lease 19.765,68 8,536.49 11,239.19
Others 1423 575 | 348
Plant & Equipments | 30%m20| 16m
Fix Protection Sysiem . 570.21 54163 2852
 Elccideal Installation & Equipments 190574 156747 33827
Furninure and Fixnosees o 38366 300,00 8366
Vchicks ] N T
Finance loase 1941 | 643 1318
Othese | EEses Seweees L SRR U ISDERE
'Office Equipment I ) T 2199
Tatal 277809 | 1443773 14,340.35 |
b} Intangible Assets = = I
Accumulated
Particulars Gross blocl Bopriciatiin Net block
Computer Sofware | 3sa7|  e@| 23

South City Projects (Kolkata) L.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Moies to Financial Staterments for the year ended 31se March, 2018

Mote 8.1 « Financial Assets - Investmenis

Investments (Fully Paid)

Al Ampriised Costt
Inwestment i1 Preference Shares - Unguoted
1o Subsidliary Companics -

A Infa Propeoes Pers Ll

Debenturs - Unguoted
Vijaybhan Investmints & Consultancy i Lid.

At Decmed Cost (Refes Note 37)

Eguited sbares-Unquoted

I Subsidiary C ;
Sauth City Hetreat Propeay Management Pt Lid
South City Vroperty Management Prvate Lid,
Sputh City Matriz Infrastruchice Lid.
Ad Inf Properics Pyt Lul **
Sputh Ciry Intemational School
South Cary Developers Py Lud
South Ciry Projects FAT
Equiry Component af Preferonee Shares in AA
Infeaprapermes Pet Lad (Refer Nore 41)
Bengal Anmel South Clty fnfrastracture Lid.

In Others
Bengal Flecrec Works Lad, #
Bengal Lamp lad. B
Bedex [ncdia Lol 8

Az Fair Value through Profic & Loss:
Equeity Shares - Quoted
In Other Companics
Bombay Dyeing & Mg Company Lul®
DLF Lak~
Codre Industrice Tad”
lindistan Conarruction Company Lid®
Houwsing Devclopivent & Infra Lul*
Rattar ks Infrastouctuse Fad®
[aciatinlls Real Hatate 1ad”
Ormaxe Ll*
Parsvnaili Davelopers Lid”
Pugvankaca Projects |ad.”
ttellanee Industries Lod,
Spbhy Dreielopees Lad®
Unitech Lid=
Ciokul Agro Resourees Limitad
Gokul Refoils & Solventd Limited

*  Refer Nowe 40

Mumber of shares finLacs
Noninal
Value Asat As oy Ay ot Asar A oat Az at
per umit 31032018 30327 OL04. 2016 1L.03.2008 . 303307 OLO4.2016
10 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,750,000 139205 139205 139205
1,39205 139205 139205
1,000 - - 7,650.00 - - To50
Taizl - - ?5.51
10 1,000 1,00 1,003 Qa0 010 010
10 10,200 10,200 10,200 1.02 1.02 102
10 199,300 199,300 177,300 .39 2.3 1773
10 358,750 358,750 358,750 3588 3568 3588
10 15300 15,300 15300 1.53 153 153
19 9,500 9,600 0,800 098 noa 098
150,000 | 1 | . ¥ =
1,23295 123295 1,232.95
10 123,900 123,500 123,000 1239 1239 1239
Tocal 131424 131424 1302358
30 1,500 1,500 1,500 . . -
10 17833 17,833 17833 . . .
10 1,999 1,999 1,999 . . .
Tolal = = -
2 5 5 5 N 0.0G o
2 1 1 1 (.00 0.08 0.00
1 1 1 1 0.0 am Q.00
1 2 -] 2 000 0.0 (0
10 1 1 1 0,00 (1] ]
2 z 2 2 000 .00 0.0
2 | 1 i 000 000 0.00
10 1 1 1 .00 0003 000
5 v 2 2 0.0 (00 0.0
5 1 i 1 .00 0.00 0.00
10 D00 10,000 10,000 BE.2B 13009 104,52
10 ¥ 1 1 0.0l ke 000
2 1 i 1 000 Q.50 0.00
2 - - 1 685,000 . - 177.717
2 - . 1,685,000 . - 15209
Tatal BE3L jErSi] 474.39

H#  Theshares are pending transfer in Company’s name.

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid, South City Projects lw
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS {EOLRATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended st March, 2018
Mote 5.1 - Financial Assets - Investments (Coatd.)
Number of sharei Tin Lace

Mominnl
Valuc Agat As at Aot Anar As ac At
_pet [TEe] AL03.2018 3L03.2047 QL4 2016 IL052018 31032017 (LIMZ016

At Fair Value through Profit & Loss:
In Lrnits of Mutual Fred - Quoted *42

Birla Sun Life TP - Corporare Bond Sevices {3) 10 Z1.681,260 42,681,260 21,000,000 2R0577 542598 2617.94
Korak TMP Sedes 122 (G) 10 - - 12,000,000 . . 148850
Reliance Carparate Band Fund (G) 10 1B3TIEN 18377633 18577623 25752 24N 21700
Bids Sunlife Medivem Term Plan {G) 10 5916565 59164,565 5016565 130034 1,501,556 1, 163,00
Frankdin India Comq Bond Cppasmunitics Fond {G) 10 B2S5392 8285392 8255392 148052 137865 124534
Hidfe Corporate Dbt Oppotunitics Fund - R - (G) i 179174 17849174 17.842,174 257224 242035 219041
Hdfc Corporate Icbt Oppostunites Fund - I - (G) it 4438251 4458251 2,438,251 662,81 617.80 554.28
1101 Prudential Mutual Fund (G} 10 9373038 93713038 9373038 25345 Z6SIS 216300
Feankdin Indis Cacp Bond Oppurnmities Fund ((3) 10 14301548 14301548 14301,548 258043 238836 215735
HIIC] Prudential Regular Savings Fund - Growth 10 16416847 16,416,649 . 30 285157 -
BO AXA Corporate Credit Speemum Fund jiv] 8,157,405 8,151,405 - 1,088.85 100010 -
HOFC Cotposte Debt Opportunities Fund 10 5921496  59214% . 5335 BOZ95 .
Kotk Income Oppormunities Fund {(G) 10 29661666 29,661,600 - 567270 532030 -
L & T Motual Puad - Collecoon Account 10 Q406007 0696007 - 1,930.20 1,810.26 -
Reliance Corpostic Bond Fuad - Direcr Growth Account 1 10483436 10,483,436 - 1,518.00 141212 -
Relisncs Corpoene Bond Fund - Growth Plan 10 TN 16379 . 107022 1,0058) :
UTT Matas! Fund Gallecoon A/C 10 10,009,244 10909334 - 1,708.17 1,621.11 -
D35 Black Rock Munm) Fund Colleetion Account 10 BO4G301  B,046,501 . 230717 216290 -
D5P Black Rock Incame Oppormunities Fund (G) 10 12087855 12,087,855 . 345848 32402 -

Tatal IRATTTS 1946218 15,695.74

i -_________.'---

Direcior Nirentor
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (EDLEATA) LIMITED
Naotes to Fimnelal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018
Wate 5.1 - Financinl Assets - Invesiments {Contd.}
Mumbet of shures

B in Lace

Mominal
Valhue Asat As a1 As nc
perumit  3L032018  3L052017  01.04.2016

As ax

A at Asat

51032018 31032017 OLO4.2015

At Fair Value through Probit & Loss:
Trvestments throngh PMS Poal Account tn Quoted Shares

Ajzni Pharma Led 2 - 186 -
Amars Raja Battenes Led 1 - 530 .
Aston Paines Lid 1 437 437 -
Astral Paly Technik Lid 1 787 787 .
Bajsj Finance Lud 2 453 570 -
Bajaj Finsere Lid 5 160 172 -
Brotannt ladustdes Lad Z 145 164 -
Choltumandalam Invesr dnd Finance Company Lad 10 353 407 =
Dalrnis Bharst Lid* 2 177 ] -
Diivis Labaratndes Lyd® 2 225 1] -
Eicher Motom Lud 10 21 bri | S
Flavells Indi Lod 1 1258 1094 -
nduaingd Bank Lid 10 462 421 -
Femk Mahindm Bank Limited 3 512 512 -
Lupin Ltd 2 349 .
MEFLd 10 9 9 -
‘Mux Financial Services Lni 2 642 3 &
Afinda Tndusimes Tid b 141 - =
Matherson Sumd Syeems Lud 1 1940 1856
P I Induwstres Tad i T2 4l
Page Indusories Lid 10 31 %
Pidilite Tndusteics Lad 1 406 551
Shree Cements Lid 10 16 23
Welspum Iridia 14 1 5472 3179
Total

Total Non Current Investments

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments

Aggregaie Deemed Cost for those investments for which the Previous GAAP canrylng
amount iy the deemed cosl.

*  Rufer Note 40

= iz
- 47
490 4.68 -
7.05 431 .
&19 670 z
az0 708 .
7.21 555 .
.02 393 .
511 . F
245 2 :
595 537 s
6.14 512 -
530 5393 .
537 447 .
= 504 _
651 547 2
291 £ .
1.52 . -
6,05 5.80 -
641 537 .
7.0 537 s
373 385 .
2.9 425 .
a7 287 .
116,50 5899 -
42,059.24 51 1894126
3938294 3969321 16,170.13

270630 270630  277L13

. 2,6M4.63

® 107,625 number of shires hld in AA Infispeopertics Pet, Lad aze pledged with AXIS Bank Ltd, for providing corpomite fuasintes on behalf of

Indocesn Developers (Prvare) Led. Srep Down Subsidacy),

*r+ Represents secusitics pledped with Banks and Othiers as accurty sgrinst Loans and Guarantees tahen by the company andd joint development companies

except 69,20,000 units of Kotk Inceme Opporunities Fund {G).

Diractor

south City Projects (Kolkata) Lwa. South City Projects {w
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EQLEATA) LIMITED
WNotes 1o Pinuncial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2018

Mote 8.2 - Tade Receivables Tin Lacs
{Unzeeured) Noa-Current Current
As al As i Az mt As s Anar Anmat
51.03.2018 IL03.TNT L4 2016 3032008 3L032017 BL04. 2015
Conmidered good 21000 15472 426,62 110001 ZE5E0D T81.54
21009 36472 426,82 1,100.01 25609 TS
Mote 5.3 - Loana
(Urrsecured comnkdersd good unless otherasse starned) Tin Lacs
=z Mon-Current " Current
Asat Aaat Avoat Az at As at Avar
ILO32018 31032017 BLO4.2016 JLOIE0IE  SLOSaMT  OLO4.206
e 16214 268.00 25347 - - 6039
Loans to nidated pacy (Refer Nate 33 *
Subesdiary € :
Conndeed Good 11.856.10 351012 2210045 - - .
Lomsidered Daahaful [l N AR | e
Laztn : Proninion. for Dioubtful Advanecs 67011 - N - 4Tl . : =
Others 16000 100000 150,00
Cither Liosins 1.300.29 A4 B06.06 160008
Total Loans 12.018.53 378418 2335352 1,400.29 4, 905.06 LEI227

Loans are non- derative finincial sasets which generate  fisved or viriable mtcrcst incom: for the company. This carying vahie may be effeoicd by charges in the coedit

sisk of the countor parted.

* Lowna & Advances 1o Relatell Taemics pertaing ao:
Subsidiare. © Conriernd Gogd) ¢
Pengal Anmol Sowih City Infrustracture fad.
Sowh Ciry Maris Infrstnciore Lid
Sovueh City Intemational Schoal
AM Infrproperies. Pt Lul

Sulnlide Companies (Considensl Dbl
Sowth Gity Projeens 2D

Othen
Khetawat Propertios |ad

]

e
f

234502 2685.99
13468 128
(%07 G585
864342 .
670,11 1011
South City Projects (Kolkala) Lia.
S
Dirastor

208251 . a .
135.98 3 : ;
81361 5 . ;

1907035 - ;
67211 . » ;
. 10000 100,00 150.00
South City Projects {Kplkata) Ltd.
il ot
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Mates 1o Financinl Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Mot 5.4 - Other Financisl Asscis Tin Lacs
MNon=-Currant = Current
Az e Au gl Asal As s Asan As i
AL03.2018 L0327 OLO4. 2016 3032018 30032017 BL05 2015

Interest Keceivables 55,68 G073 - 994 181.11 .05
Advances to relaved pagries (Refer Nome 29) = 1,204.06 1,204.06 1,204.06 16837 33 45.01
Diebi Seevice Reserve Account®* 44000 440,060 440,00 . . -

Total Other Finaacinl Asscis 1.699.74 L704.79 1.5644.06 17831 i 14197

* Advances to Belated Pardes peraln tod

: G s {Cogsidzred Gong)'
Kollam Metropalin South Ciry Development Lud, 1,204.06 1,204.00 120406 - - -
A Infrpropeaics Pet Lid. - - - xnat 70,00 .
Sowth iy Retreat Proporry Management Pyt Lid . . - 037 0.27 -
Indocean Drevelopers Pt Led. - . . 147.9% 2,06 3547
South Gy International School . . - - - 054

== It repoesents mign money in favour of Axiy Bank for Term Lean svatled,

South City Projects (Kolkata) L. South City Fm {w
--__,.__\.__9--*'-""'"
< - - e
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
MNotes ta Financial Statements for the year ended 31m March, 2018

2 in Lacs
Mate 6.1 - Current Tax Assets (Med) Balance Shees ~
Aa o Asat As mi
31.03.2018 51032017 01042016
Total of Curnent Tax Azsers 1075.34 B20.89 74294
Less: Toml of Corenr ‘Tax Liabilitics A3 56573 28692
Taral 99621 264.16 456,02
Note 6.2 - Deferred Tax Asscts & Liobilides (INet)
¥ in Lace
o i As at As &t As at
Wapiae < {Tdbidity)  avast 51032018 31032017 01.04.2016
Defermed Tax Liabilives
Amorigation of Upfront fevs on Loans 0.2z 20.99 44.98
Fair valuation of Equiry Shares 21.60 1264 936
Fair valuation of Mumnial funds 1913.88 1285.53 604.17
Tatal (A) 1935.70 1319.16 659.01
Deferred Tax Assela
Azsing out of wmponry diffeeences in diprociable asses 36,68 30.56 2853
Un txpenses allowable apainst taxable income in future years
- Provision for Gratuity 4588 28.9% 24.14
- Pravinion for Leave Bncashment 59.59 2104 14.28
- Municipal Tax 390.00 31.55 117
- Dithwers theough OC] 228 i} -
Total (B) 53443 11412 68.12
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (B-A) {1,401.27) =&M§-’M} {590.85)
Tin Lace
As o Asat
3032018 31032017
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expensea ab stafulory income tax rate
to income % expenses reported in statement of Profit & Lows is aw follows :
Accounting Prafit Belore Income Tax L132.47 0,639.58
Indian saanitory Income Tax rare (%) H.608% M.608%
Expected Income Tax Expenscs T3i8.01 3.336.07
Tax chieer of adjustments to recondle expeeted income tx cxpenses to sepocted
ICome M eXpRTsed
lncome cxempr from incomo mxes: (S04.12) (GE5.43)
Addidenal allowanees / deduction 64127 374.95
lmpact of Jifforearial ox mie (437.67) (542.77)
Impact due to different head of income 49744 (800.33)
Permanent differmees 78,88 151
Dreferred Tax (o note abowe) 194.51 616,15
Tota! Income Tax Expentcs 81232 2.316.35
Effcetive Tax Rawe 35.09% 24.03%
South Cily Projects (Kolkata) Lid. South City Projects (Kglkata) Lid.
e v —_— e A e
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KROLEATA) LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statemaents for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Mote T = Other Assets

Advanees other than capinal advances
Advances for Projects, Exponses ofc.
Joint Devclopment Agreement
Balince with Government Authorntics
Prepaid Exponses
Other Advances

Total Other Ausetn

Note & - Inventorics
(Lower of cost or net realisable valuc)

Raw Maregials & Consumables
Construction Work - in - projress
Land
Others
Finished Goods

Total inventories

Maote 9.1 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balanees with banks:
— Oa curtent accounes

Tin Lace
. MNon-Current Curpent

Asat Az m Ay at Az at Asar As At
k) Kis Reliih] 3103.2017  0L04.2016  3L032018  3L032017 OLO42016

279.90 227.80 - ~ . ;
- - ’ 25236 31705 2ITET0

412802 308338 3,344,698 = ¥ .
S - - 22179 29838 2092
= - - 1,01069 BT 2001
T8.89 TL04 206.27 10837 12241 62506
4,487.41 399431 3550.95 1559.21 497.41 éﬂlﬁ?
T in Lacs

Asar As at Ag at
31032018 3L03.2017 OLO4.2016

60627 - 24007 - -

4.375.54 6,313.38 - TAT299 -
1529647 15,672.01 977035 16,083.73 13,761.88 2113487
955,79 - 965.59 - 101.54
17,234.07 I?ﬂ.ﬂ 2123641
€ in Lacs

Crarrent
An ot Anat Asoat

— Dyposts with original materity of less than three months

Cash in kand

Total Cash and Cash Bquivalents

Moie 9.2 = Other Bank Balanges

Term Pepdsits with maturity of more than three months but

leas than pwdlve meoths
Toin! Other Bank Balances

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.

N Sy

3L03.2018  3L03.2017 OLO4.2016

6546 G20.55 37193
037 025 023
507 T.89 700
T0.50 628,69 3B5.06
TinLacs
Current
As at As at Asat

3L03.2088 ALO32017 OLO4.2006

055 0.52 D48
0.55 0.52 0.48
South City Projects {Kslkala) Lid.
o e,
Directar
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EDLEATA) LIMITED
Motes to Finnneinl Stateenenie for the year ended 3at March, 2018

Moie - 10 = Equity Share Capital

_ Pinlacs
Azl As at Asgag
31-Maoe-2018 - 31-Mor-2007  01-Aps-2016
Autherised Capital
50,00,000 Bquity Shanis of Rs, 10 cach 500.00 500.00 500.00
Tnoued, Subseribied and Paid-up Capitet
45,00,700 Equity Shates of Ra. 10 gach fully paid up in caih 450,07 43007 45007
Towl Equity Share Capiial 450.07 450.07 450.07
a) The Reconcilintion of Share Capital is given below:
Az al 31032018 As ar 3LO3.2017 Adcat 0LO4.2016 _
No. of Shares TinLlocs Mo of Shares TinLlsce No.ofShares  ¥inLacs
At the beginning of the yesr 4,500,700 45007 4,500,700 45007 4,500,700 450,07
{=3ued during the Yesr = - H 2 : =
Ar the el of e yrar 4,500,700 £50.07 4,500,700 A50.07 4,500,700 450,07

b} Teems/Rights nuached to class of shaees

The Company has only one class of Bquity Shares having a par value of s 10 cach. Holder of each Equity Share is cnniled to-one vate per share. The Company
declares and payy dividends in [ndizn repees. In the event of liquidaton of the Company, the holder of cquity sharcs will be entitled to receive remaining 2ssets of
the Company, after distribution of all peefecential amounts. The distabution will be in proportien to the aumber of equity sharea held by the shacchalden.

£) Detadls of Sharehelder holding more than § percent of Equity Sharcd in the Company

A5 oy 3032018 As a1 3103.2017 As at 01.04.2016

No.ofShares % holding _ No. of Shases % holding Mo, of Shares % holding
Sheachi Developers Py Lad 450071 1000% 450071 10.00% 00T 1000%
Pack Chambers Lad 425105 945% 425105 0.45% 425105 945%
Meelin Projects |1 390955  B60% 390955 86%% 390955 86U
Jugal Kishore Khetuwat 36334 5.58% 386334 858% WB6IM 858%
Jugal Kishore Khetawat “Trustee of Khetrunt Family Welfire 320,335 1.5% 326225 T.25% 6835 T45%
Vinayak Dealers (7) Lad 202000  64%% 22000 G4 22000 649%
Pan Umared Cosmed [ 254225 5.45% 254,225 545% 254,225 5.55%

As perreconds of the Company, including its regisrer of shanehvldens fmembees and other declamtions reccived from shaseholden rognding beneficial nteves, fhe

gbave sharchiolding represents both legal and benefical ownership of shams

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.
O £ . L} ﬂ

CoaliE St i

Director
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLKATA) LIMITED
Muotes to Financial Statemenis for the year ended 318t March, 2018

Natg - 11 - Other equity

Reserves & Surplug
Secunites Premium Account
tetained caomings
Cienem] Teserve
Chher Comprehensive Income
= IWVTOC! reserve {net of k)

Total other equity

¥ in Lacs
Asat Aszr As at
31.03.2018 3033017 0104 2006
G60.00 GOO00 &60.00
17,649,809 1935874 12.0%5.51
20,600.00 20,000.00 20 00000
{B.44) (4.14) 3

38,30155 40,011.60 32,6951

Securities Premium Account- Premium received a0 cquity shares issued are recognised in the scounties premium account.

General Rescrve - Under the crstwhile Indisn Companies Act 1956, 2 pencel seserve was cruated through an annual tzansfer of oct
income at a specified porcentage in sceordance with applicable ceguladons, (o ensure that if 4 dividend disteibution in 2 given year &
miote than 10% of the paid capicd of the Company for that year, the total dividend distribution &5 levs than the total distshumble renults
fur that year, Conseguent ta introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement 1o mandatorily wansfor 2 specified percentage of the

uict prolit 1o genel cescrve has been withdmwn

Retained Eamings - Retained camings includes surplus in the Statement of Profic and Loss, Ind-AS refaved adjustments as on the date

of transition, fremessurement gains/ losses on definml benofit oblipadons,

FVTOCI Reseive - Mot gain/(loss) on remessurement of defined benefit liabiliy comprising of octunal gain aod losses and

rotun on plan assets {exchding interest income),

« "y

wnhiy ety Holkstal

Souih City Projacts {w
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statcmenis for the year ended 31st Masch, 2018

Mo 12.1 - Borrowings

MNon-Current Borrowings

Secured

Teom Loans from Banks {A)

Loty “T'eeen Maturitics of Finance Loaie Obligations (G )

Total Non Cucrent Borrowings
Borrowing included in Other Financial Liabilites

Curreat Borrowing
Secured

Leans from Other Parties
Bank Owerdrafe

Warking Capltal Loan

Unsecured

Vrom Body Cosposte
FFrom Dircctoss

From Related Partics
Tempomry Bank Overdraft

Total Current Borrowings

Current maturites of long-term borrowings from Bank {B)
Cuecent marurities of finance lease oblipatons (D)

Totzl Borrowing included in Other Financinl Linbilitics ®

Agpregate of Term Loan from Bank (A + B)
Agprogate of Financial Lease Obligaton (C + IF)

* Refor Nore 122

o

e i T

g hls,

i Byclams [Reies) L2

TinLlacs
Asat An at Anat
31-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017 _ 01-Apr2016
4 26956 1274949 15,179:.11
1728 717 .45
4,286,854 12,756.56 15,18A.46
14,700.00 12,700.00 6,450.00
B434.43 274221 2.306.54
- 1,500.00 .
23,134.43 16,942.21 B756.54
3,310.00 3,550,00 3,150.00
100.00 B50.00 503.00
4 2 950,00
4,155.58 419,17 332
7,565 50 4,819.17 463622
30,700.01 21,761.38 392,76
13,927.87 523696 491563
5.07 218 815
13,9329 5,.109.14 4,923.78
18,197:43 1798645 20,094.74
7235 9,35 17.50
BT T

b Brgdent= i.?-(E' (alm, L,

—
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLKATA) LIMITED

Mows oo Flasocial Satements 25 at sod for the year ended 31a1 March'2008 :
Termi-& Condidoas

Moa Cumreat
Pordon af
Lgan waon
032046

Mon Current , Mon Curreat
Pordonof | Pordonel
Loanagon | Loaowion
IL0RZ0IE | L0300

Comeat | Current
Pordonof | Portion of
Loanason | Lodoasoa
3Lasa2oy 31032016

Currear |
Portion of
Loac 28 0
33032018

Bank from |
whom Loan
it avniled

¥ in Lacs T inLacs ¥ inLacs ¥ o Lacy ¥ in Laco T in Lacn

Intereat I Toaralmenr

(pa. iR Security Provided %o vall Lozo
basis) 1

T iz Lacs

(#) Teon Loans Prom Banks

MEBE L2060 NGN3G | 426056 502403 34N

] r [ I

| |

Kotk Bank

| 1) Graund Floor w13t flooe of
| Sauth City "Mnnacke” sansated ¢
Enrinag Plot M, X1-1, Block EP, Seeror W,
manihs Lo Salt Lake, Kokars - T00 011
a5 |2) Municipal Premiaes No. 2, justce
i [Chandra Madhav Read,

11214

Bhowsrpore in the Distict 24
Parpanas ).

i Bhorwaniposs, Kol - 700020, PS5, I

Aad Pank T,750.45 401934 338227 772546 11,744,180

1. First Pasi-passu charge by way of
exquitshle moryag: over the

Mall which 1s vwned by SCPKL) o
be shased only with the SULE
facility o 275 ot provided by
the bank;

12 Fient chasge over the cash Mow
ol e pouperty

1, First charge over the Deeignated
Azgount & DSRAANIZ

Hasce Rate
phas 1.25%

Unegqual
Frstaliveerara

preoperey (entire build up ace in the |

Axix Bank 545448

1. Pt pani passy charge by way of
Equitable Mongage ovee the

y b b dhareed oy with the
M MOLR gk e
plus 1.20% Hrtrery Axds Rank Lok
2. First pari pasku chasge over the
cath flows of the Mail

SOLGC/T1. facitiies already pvailed |

13,927.87 5,236,596 4,915,653 4255.56 1274949 15,1780

TOTAL {a) |

{b) Finance Lesse Obligations

218 &15 747

HIBEC Bank 198 |

I
935

! Hypothecstion of Cretz & Polo

SA45Y 044 Vbl

"f';m =
Finaneial el '

750

TOTAL B} | 5.07 | FRTH 815 7 | 935

0.13 | Hypothecation of Tiies Vehicle

TR e ] e
B T SR

ki Lopy P,

La

..—-—-—"'-'-J
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Maotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Murch, 2018

Mote 12.2 - Other Financial Linbilitics
MNon-Current I

TinLacs

Cument

Asat As ng As ot Asat
31.03.2048 3032017 01.04.2016  31.032018

As at As ot
31.03.2017 01.04.2046

Seeurity Deposits Heoeived 2523.37 1,836.41 402241 218647 67841 96,14
Ciurrent manritos of long-reom borrowings B . . 13927.87 523696 491563
Current mamnties of finance lease obliFarons - . - 07 218 a.135
Refundable Deposits against Expired Lease - . - . T44.97 N
Intesedt accrued bur not dee on bormowings - - * 838 122 1216
Trerest accrued and due on borrowings - = B 167.23 191.13 149583
Othens * - - - 544,46 610,84 42370
Tatal Other Financial Liabilities l=_5',52'_’..'l':|' 1,836.41 4!021.41 16,839.48 7.475.51 ﬁ,ﬁ!g

* Includes Be, NIL [2015-17 - Re, 3.35 lakhs, 201514 - Re. ML) payable to Subsldiary - Seuth City Developers Pyt Ltd.

Mate 13 - Peovitions TinLace
Nen-Current Cusrent e
Asat Arax A ar Aaat As ar Asar
31032018 31032017 OlL42016  3L032008 3103207 0LM.ADIS
Provision for employee benefits
= Provision for grantty Refer Note 30) 10247 6593 ST.07 3670 24,00 12.68
- Provision for leave encashment {Refer Nore 30) 138.64 49,33 3556 5353 11.53% 471
241.1 115246 93.63 70,23 3562 17.39
Note 14, Trade Paysbles
_ TinLacs
Asat Asar As g
31032018  3L03.2017 01042016
Trile Payalles
- Total oulstanding duce of Micro & Small Eniemdses - -
{5ee Note bolow)
- Total cursianding dues of creditors other than Mico & )
Small Linterprises & 439301 56042 323088
4,393,010 5,604.29 3,236.88

Mote : Thore ane mo Micro, Small and  Methum Enterprises, o whom the company owes ducs which ore ousmnding for more than 45

days duning the year. This information as requirsd to be disclosed wnder the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpoise Development Act,

2006 ay been determined 1o the extent such partics have been idontified on the basiv of information available with the compacy.

"‘--_&_n____b-.n-:-‘-‘—"f
g

Dirartar
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S0UTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Motes to Financial Staternents for the year ended 3at Masch, 2018

Mote 15. Other Current Liabilities FinLacs
Amat AR at As nr
L3 20ME 31.03.2017 01.04.2016

Advances from Customees 158229 1.278.66 13,721.61
Orthizna

Smaturary ducs 1,305.67 336.00 246
Total other ctrrent Linhilities 2B87.97 1.614.7T2 14.054.00

==

Mote 16 - Distribution of Dividend

- ¥in Lacs
Agat As at
31.03.2018 31032017

Divideads on Equity Shares declured and paid:
Firial dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017- Ry, 55.00 per 247532 B
share {1st Apil 2016 - Rs. Nil per share)
DI on final dividend 499.63 -

2,975.02 -

South City Projects {Kolkata) La. South City Projects (Kalkata) Li.

e e s
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Motes 1o Finbnoral Stitomonts for the vewr eoded 31s0 Mareh, 2008

Mo 17.1 - Finaneiol Asgeis

Fimanvial Assets - MNon Currein
A Semerpscd £t

ap Tiede Nuwuavatily

T Lanms

(up Cither fnamtal ag=

A hvenipen] & s

Trveshners

e Fn b (el precibn g e

Insestimngrs
Tapyl Non Current Frouncial Assers (a0

Finnncial Assels - Coerent

Ve Nupaesiseid s

G Tende Roverealsles

T sy ] 0 sl |'.L|||I.'. aleiey

() ek Pt other thane (I abuave
wl; [ enins

T} Ol bumsneial Assens
Tionad Current Finaneial Assews (b))
Tuorul Figmel Avsers (a4 h)

Blite 172 - Finamcial Liwhilines

Finuncial Linbilines - Moo Current
W b vt

() B pnips

(e taher [Pl Laadulines

Total Mon Curremt Finanenid Liabdites (o)

Finuwneal Liahilites - Corrent
A Sonatised st

(ie) Besrri margms

(b1 Veale payalates

(o) ke frsuea] Db

Toml Correne Fivamesal Tachiliones (1)

Toeal Financlal Linbilitics {a + b)

-

g——

T an Lags

Asat Akt A at

31.03.2018 31032017 OLO42016
B I T2 283
1201833 3B 133593
168,70 [ TELTI IR ENT
13,929.16 5,R5%.60 24,424.80°
270651 ] | oo | gk
MILAEZYS 64322 16 AT S
55, 018.41 48,253.20 43,166.06
(M TTERYD 2 HARL THT:54
OB [IEG0 38316
055 52 {1k
| Aui, 2 S0 0 [t -
17451 e 1410
22,7405 B AGT.E0 312042
3%,768.37 57,1200 16,487.48
FTm Lacs

A an Aot As

JL03.2008 Fnosamy L0420k

425054 12754060 (R

IRIRGT Tadind] AHEZAT
[0y 1 e 14A9507 1921087
MLTON 21.700.28 130270
AAUE A 0005.20 32MAE
[ R TATRA] ERIN|
3143240 TR 28135
5874271 49,435,325 41,492.12
Ml AL

South City Projzcts (Kolkata) L
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
MNotes 1o Financial Statements for the year ended 3tot March, 2018

Mote 18 - Revenue from Oporations

Sale of Products

Revenue from Land & Constucted Proporsicy
Sale of Services

Rental Income

Maintenance Secvicea
Oither Operating Bevenue

Cithes

Total

Moté 19 - Other Income

Income form Financial Asscis
Interest Income
From Customers
IFrom Louns
From Deposits
From Others
Dividend Income on lovestments

Other Nou Opemting Income
Met Gainon Sale of Investments
Tair Value Changy of Invesmments meamred at TVITLL
Guarantee Commission (From Subsidiary Company)
Interest - Sale of Land
Migeclhaneous Income

Total

Mote 20 - Construction Cost

Salarles, Wages & Hoous
Contabution to Mrovident & Other Funds
Staff Welfare Fapenses
Power & |fuel
Repairs
Cithers
Insurasice
Rates & Taxes
land
Matepals Consumed
Construction Lxpenses
Payment against Surrender of Tenancy
Other Opemting Expenscs
Consulancy & Reminership Charges
Finanee Costs

Total

a5 I

Sauih City Finess (Kalkata) Lid.

riee it

Tin Lacs
2017-18 2016-17
307086 1583804
408341 157135
1,505.88 1,975.56
a7 63,37
$.692.12 25.848.94
ZinLacs
2017-18 201617
272 m
105216 216654
652 8.1
14 1.74
22068 B.B7
1732 10623
258077 229063
Jaaz 21305
183119 .
100.85 145.66
= 5,42.67 $,S42E2
¥in Lacs
2017-18 2016-17
151.98 10252
4,69 4,56
035 1
21.86 3250
1160 266
G52 6.66
1921 G004
1371 40.39
51084 1347.18
10362 2.405.9%
. 411876
141.38 18845
3847 334,50
042 7201
193825 B7iR2T

South City Projects Lw
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

MNote 21 - (Increase)/Ddecrease in Inventorien of Finished Goody and Constructon Work-in-Proccss

%in Lacs
2017-18 - 2016-17
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 05573 965.59
Constructan Work «in-progress
Land 437554 531338
Cithers 1129647 1567201 977035 16,083.73
Tol (A) 15,627.80 17,049.32
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 06559 101.54
Censiruction Work -in-progriss
Land 6,313.34 737299
Others a.770.35 13.761.88 21,134.87
16,085.73
Less Trnsidonal Inpur Cradic under GET 24.13 16,059.60
Totzl (B) 17,025.19 21,236.41
Total (A - B) 39739 4,187.9

Sout Dty fyceants italiatal L south City Proiects (i ta) Lid.
‘-—__-A—A'H*
C E | ] —
c-:-: -——-—-"'-.-F-

Cyirenios Director




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
MWotes to Financinl Statements for the year ended 31et March, 2018

MNote 22 - Emnployee Denefit Expensey

Tin Lacs
2017-18 016-17
Salaries and Wages 671.68 417.55
Cotitrdbution to Provident and Other Funds (lefer Note 310) 3763 2307
Staff Welfare Expensey .60 27.25
Total 7i8.91 461.87
Motc 23 - Finznee Cosn
_  RinLawms
_ 2017-18 01617
Interest Expense 365141 371820
(hher Bearowing Cost 4.21 168.16
Total 3,655.62 3,886.37
Motc 24 « Depreciation and Atortisation Expense
YinLacs
2017-18 201617
Depreciation of Tangible Assets (Naote 4) 97051 1,105.70
Amortisation of fnngible Awers (Mo 4) 54 5.68
Total 982.85 1,111.38
Maote 25 - Oither Expenscy
—_— ¥ in Lacy
2017-18 2016-17
Power 8 Fud 619.40 820.13
Repaim:
- Building 3258 17.21
- Othess 12012 59.82
- Muintenance 268.31 23288
Heuse Keeping Chatges 221.19 313
Sccurity Chasges 200.98 22135
Insurance .40 2529
Rates & Toxcs 1.714.93 587.40
Lepal & Professional fees 325.65 190.16
DHreetod’s Remunemtion 3a00 19.09
Companite Sockl Responsibility Expenses (frefor note bolow) 223.83 49.52
Loz on Discard of Fixed Asacts 861,01 -
Mscollaneous Expenses 240.80 219.14
Total 80230 ' .52

*Cosporan: Socil Responeibility expensed Rs. 22383 Lacs (2016-17: B 49,52 Lacs} includes Company’s own

programme for promoting cmployment enhancing vocational shill programene named ‘T min'

i'c—:':——:)m____i._.l—-&-—-"

Miracior
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes 1o Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Note 26.1 - Auditor’s Remunermtion

. Tin Lacs
2017-18 2016-17
As Auditor;
Audit fees 450 1.25
Tax audit fee 0.50 030
Oiehier Matters 1.9¢ .25
Total fi.94 LB80
Mote 262 - Datails of CSR expenditure:
__TinLacs
2017-18 2016-17
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company dudng the yedc 142.36 107.34
{b) Amount spent durdng the yean % in Lacs
2017-18 2016-17
Constructon/ Acquistion of an saset . 3
Purposes other than above 223,83 49.52
Total 233.83 49,52

Mote 27 - Earaings Per Shace (EPS)

Basic EI*S amounts are calculared by dividing the profit for the year atrdbutable o equity holders of the
Campany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the yeas,

Diluted EPS amounts are calcuhated by dividing the profit attdbutable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equlty shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted syemge number

of equity shares that would be issued on convession of all the dilutive potental equity shars into cquity
shares,

‘The following reflects the income and shace data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

. T in Lacs
2017-18 2016-17
{I‘::t Pmﬁ;.‘ for calculstion of Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share 1,266.27 732323
Weighted average number of shares (Nos.) 4,500,700 4,500,700
Eaming per equiry share
Basie & Dilured eamning per share (in Rs)) 28.14 162.71
Sputh ity Proacts (eliatz) Hn South City Projecis [i(w
— ! e
]
1/@—— p—— Diractor
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Maotes to Finanoinl Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2016

Mote 28 - Bignificant acouunting judgements, catimates and gssumptions

The prepasation of the Company's Bnancal smtcments requires management 1o make julgements, catimates and sssumptions
thar affect the mepored amounts of rovenues, cxpenses, assers and lishilitics, and the sccompanying disclosuees, and the
disclosure of contingenr Lshilitics Uneemainty abour these assumptions and canmares could pesult in outcomes that soquare 2
material sdustment to the carrying amount of assees ve labilites affected in furure perode.

Judgemenis, Etimates and assumpiions

“Ihe key pammprions conceming the future and other key sousces of esimanon wnceeamey ot the reporting date, thut have 3
significant risk of causing 2 matenial ajusement to the seryioy amounts of assen sod labilnics within the nt financial year, am
deserbed below. The Company bascd its assumptions and estimates on parimetens availsble when the Finanetal Statements
were prepared. Bxisting circumstances and misumprions about funare developments, however, may change due 1o maske
changes or groumstances asing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are suflected in the sssumptions
when they occur In the process of applying the Companys sccounting palicies, management has made the follawing
1udgements, esanates. and assumprions, which have the most significnt effea on the amoudns recognised in the Financial
Swteminte.

Defined Employsr Benefit plans

The: cost and the present value of the Jefined benefit gransty plan and other postumployment leave encashment benefit are
determined: using acnuaral valustons. An astuadal valustion involves making various assumptions that may differ from acal
developments in futire. These include dhe derermination of approprate discount mee, estimating Raneee salary fneressis and
mortalify mies: Due to the compliities invalved in the valuation and its loag-teem nanues, 2 defied benefit shligation i highty
denelive to changes in theds assumptians All asiumptions st revicwed at cach reporing date. For fuether details mofer Note 30,

Falr valur measurement of fnancial instruments and guoraniees

When the fir values of francial assets and fnancial Habibities sconded in the Balance Sheet cinnot be measueed baged on
quited prices in wrdve markets, theie fadr value is measueed wing valuatiom techniques inchuding the DCF model. The inputs to
these madels are taken fromn obscovabke mackers where possble, but where this is not feasible, 2 degree of judgement is requined
it establishing fir values:. Judgrments inclinle considmations of inputs such as Ueyuidiny rizk, credit nsk and velidliny. Changes in
assumptions about these Betors could affect the repurted fair vidue of Anancial insraments.

Depreeciativn on Propeny, Flani and Equipment

V'raperty, plant and equipment repeeseni 3 significant proporion of the sisin base of the Company. Tht chasge in respect of
perodic depreciation & didved aftes determining an cofimate of an sssct’s expected ugcful life and the expecied maidual value at
the end af its i, The weiful lives 2nd meslduad values of company's assets aee determined by manzgement at the ime e taset
noquired and reviewed periodically, including at edch Anancial year end. The lves are bassd on hisrorcal experience with smilar
axsets a8 well a8 andicipation of future eventy, which may impaet their life, such as changes in technology

Provisions and contingencics

The assesaments undertaken in meognisdng provisions and contingeneles have bevn mads in scconlance with the applicble Ind
AS: A\ provision i3 secopniveed if, a3 a resule of a past event, the Company has 3 proscar Jegal of consiructve obligation that can
be cstimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of ceonomic benefits will be requined to scitke the obligation. Where the
effect of tme value of money i miatenal, provisions are detennined by discounting the expected future cish Bows, The
Company has significant capiral commitments in relation 0 vadiows pital projects which arc not recognized on the balnge
sheet,

In the noemal coune of business, countngent labilines may anse from Brigtion and other clims agamse the Company,
Guamatees arc also provided in the nomal course of busincss. There an: certain obligations which management has enncluded,
based on all avallable faces anl cieeumetancey, are ot peobable of payment ae are very Jifficult to quannify relisbly, and such
oblysitions mw treated a¢ comtingenr labilifics and disclosed in the noter bur ame not reflected as lubilises in de Brancil
uatementz. Although thore can be no assurance reganling the final ourcome of the logal proceedings in which the Campany
invelved, itis not expected thie such confingencies will have a material effect on its financial position o profimbiliy,

Clagsification of leases

The Company eniters into leasing armngements for varioys asser The dessification of the kesing amangement as a franer leise
ot operating lease is basid on an assessment of sovenl facton, induding, bur nor iminsd to, trnsfie of owncrthp of leased
asset at end of lease ey, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated cortminey of ¢acrcise of such optan, propordon of lease
teem to the asset’s ceonomic bfe, proportion of proent value of minimum Jease payments to fair value of leaed asser and extent
of speciabized natuse of the Jeased neset,

South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd. South City Projects {Kw
——— e ——
< = = Ak |

Mirarior Dlractor




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EGLEATA) LIMITED
Motes 4o Financhl Statements for the year ended 3131 March, 2018

Motz 29 - Infonmation oo Joint Venrrne Entitics

o e T tnshe Joine o

As ot Anat As an
3L03.2018 IL03.2017 01042016
R Eropasion,  Couougal Prportion Country of Praparton Country of
il of lomet  Incompenmtion  of lnewsy  locopontion  of Joleest Incoquoadion
Kolkata Metropobizm South City Revelopment Ll, 4907 India 400 [ricdia 9.0 Trubia

. The Company's mteresss i Joinr Ventuees are, repored a5 Fnancial assets - Investmenes.

2. Iz Cermpany and Myfs: Medin Projects Lad. acting together i a consortem ealled * South City Melin Consordum® wit gwarded 4,40 Acoa of Land in 2
competitive bid mvited by the Kolkats Metropolitn Dvvelopment Authority (KMDA) for the developrment of Residential and Commureial eum Office Comples,
for 2 fum of R, 1091400 Lacs {Bid Amount) on a jeint ventun: basis. As per terms of Memerandum of Understanding (MOU) entersd between the South City
Medin Consortium and KMDA, company has paid 10%% of the bid amount to the KMDA alorg with an camest money deposit of e 50,00 bics oh céocution of
MOU. As the entire project was ta be camicd out on 3 joint venture basis, 3 new company was flogted in the aame and style of M/s Kollata Metropolitan South
Giry Development Ll (KMSCDL) with suthonsed shasy capita] of Re. 100,00 Lacs. The company has agred 1 subsenbe 4,99,700 Equary Shases of Ra. 10/- cach
aprepating to Rs 4997 Lacs by signing the Monomadum of Assecition of aforesaid KMSCDIL | Iowever, thy matter s under Edgation. In vicw of thiy, the
commpany has kept in abeunce the payment of subverpiion amount of Ra 4897 Lacs. Huither, it wis found that diie to imdverience from KMDA, ermonedw
description of the land was given in the above mentioned MOLU. As such 3 Supplemental MOU dared 16/11/2011 was exeouted where i toal are of land was
revised to 367 Acres. Insplic of repeated roquicits and romanders, KMTXA has oot yee handover the lud parcely. The Company requested for refiund of sum paid to
EMIIA tagether with intirest os well as reimburement sf cepensts ingumed, On the faikies of KMDA the consortom mvoked the Asbitration Clawie ennuined in
the said MOU by appeinting Justice Amitavs Lak (Retd) to adjudiate the dispute. KMDA in course af the gitings belfore Juaton Lak, msed olyection as to his
appeintment as Arbitrator and did not agree 1o the continusnce of the Arbitmtion proceedingy, In such circumstances and o5 advised the Consomium has decied
nik 16 procoed with the said Arbitmtion and to have a new Arbitrator sppointed in terms of Section 11 of the Asbitration & Conghation Act, 1996, In the daid
application u/s 11, Mr. Japonin Mitrs, Senir Adiocate has been appointed us the Adteator, In the Arbstration, evillaice of wimesies have been completed and the
samie i on the verpe of completon.

South City Projects (Kalkata) Ltd. South City Projects (Kolksta) Ld.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED

Notes 1o Pinancial Statements for the year ended 3lat March, 2018

Noie 30 - Employee Benefit Obligatan

(1) Defined Benefit Plans

“I'he Following table summarizes rhe companenns of net banefit expense recognised mn the Saroment of Proficand loss and OC1 and amounis

recognised fy the Balance Shect

Yin Lakhs
I 2017-18 I 2016-17 =
! Leave Leave
| Paricular | Gt | S | [
) Unfunded Unfunded
Changes in the prescat value of Defined Beacfit Obligation: |
::mt value of Defined Benefit Obligation ar the beginoing of the ‘ 90.02 60,85 \ 6975 e
Current Service Cost \ 1301 2235 10572 ! B.66
Intercst Cost 457 444 ~ 5.45 b e
Past Service Cout 2332 - . -
Remeswurements (or Acturial {pning}/lossss) adsing from ‘ ‘
i = Changes in demographic azssumptions ! . - - : |
|+ Changes in finzncial assumptions ] (275 {5.03) 364 LT
- Bsperience varienoe (Le Actual expericnee vs assumptons) 033 95.74 z2m 1L15
| - Oihiers | - - | . e
 Benefits Daid - (123 _ {618} 225 (650
!P:;:twlut of Defined BeneBit Obligation at the end of the ‘ 139.17 | — " 9002 | P i
P = i : By
Amounts Recopnised in the Balance Sheet : | | _I !
Presrnt vahue of defined benefis obligarion at the year end 139.17 | 17217 90,02 60LBS
(a5 2t 01042016 Granity 69.75 lacs & Leave Encoshmient 41.27 lac) | 1
Fair Valee of the Plan Arscis at the year end - - l . ‘ -
ifas ot 01042006 Gropaiy W 8 Leave Brcashment Nil) ) |
'Lisbillty/(Assct) Recognlued in the Balance Sheet 13317 | 90.02 | 60.85
Expense recognised in the Staterncot of Profit and Loas: 1
{Current Service Cout 13.94 235 10.72 8.66 l
1!’:@: Service Cost an - . -
Remeasurements {ur Acturial (gins)/Josscs) ardsing from:

‘ = Chanjes in flnancial assumptions - (5.03) - 304
« Ezperence vancnge (Le: Acrual experivnce ve assumptions) : 95.74 ~ . 11.15
[Mat |ntercat Cost/ {Income) _ .57 444 545 3.23 |
'Net Cost Recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss I 43.80 117.50 | 16.17 26.08 |
|Expease recognised in the Other Comprehengive Income: i II | l
| Remeasurcments (indloscs i .58 - ¢ .35 . - |
INet Cost Recopnised in Other Comprehensive Income - 6.58 =} ! - :
\Finsnelal Assumptions : If , r |
Discount Rate T.60% T.60%, T30 7.50%
(Salary Girerarth Rate {per annum) a.nw.[ E.DD%| B.M‘!-'i| B.EID":":|

lD:mngmphic Assumptious : | |

|?'-Iur:aﬁly Rate (¥ of LALLM 06-08) 1ons, 100%% 100%% 100%
Mormal Rerrement A (yrs) 58 | ig 58 38
| Atrcition Rates, based on age It Ll e h

The estimates of futuee sabiry dncreases considored in actunsial valuation, mke account of toflation, seniority, promotion and other rebovant

Factors, such a5 supply and demand in the emplopment market.

Assumptions regarding fuire mortality experience are sof in accordance with the published statistica by the Life Iniunnce Corportion of

India
The discount mte i based on the government secusitics yield.

The Company asacases these assumptions with its projected long:torm plans of growh and prevalent induseory smndards.

South City Projects (Kqlkata) Lia.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended st March, 2018
Mote 30 - Employee Benefits Obligation (Contd.)

A guantitarive smsitivity analiwis for significant assumption is shown belows

S v Lakbs
Gramly |
‘__ p.u:a: 032018 As at 31.03.2017 i
_]__m_:gcqsc | Decresge Inoruise
Diiscount Rare (- / -+ 194 ~ 151 58 128.55 9704 83.28 |
% change compaced to: hase due 1o sensitlvity B.51%% T63% BB TAP
Salary Grorth Rare (- /4 1% ‘ 131.24 148.04 85.33 0475
% change compaced to base doe to scosinvity i -5,70% 6.37% -S.Ml 3.26%
Arridon Rate [ - f + 50%) ] 377 140.35 89.03 | 90.86
% chanpe compaeed o base due wo sensitiviey 'IUI".-"‘E| 0.85% -I.Iﬁ%l 0.04%
Merrality Ratc (- / + 10%) 136,88 | 13945 | 89.80 | 0023 |
% change comparcd to base duc 1o sensitiviry -21%. 0.20% 2400 0.23%:
Leave Encashment I o
A u131.03.2018 As st 3L03.2017 |
| Drecoenne Inerease Decrease | Tmorcase |
Discount Rate - / + 1%5) ' 18057 157.06 61541 55,23
% change compaied o base dug o sensitivigy 1034% BT 10.99% 0. 24%
Salary CGeowth Rate (- /4 1%%) 15611 190,83 554 673
% chanpe compared to baso due to scnsitvity 0.3%% 10.84% B11% 10.61%
Anrifion Rate (- / + 50%) v 171.65 61.22 60.53
% chanpe compared to bage dug 1o seasitvity 0.35% A.31% 0.61% 053%
Mortaliy Rate {- / + 10%%) 172327 17208 60.91 G070
% change compared ta-base due 1o scositviry i B.06% -006% 0108 | -0 0%

Senditiviry for sigrificant scruadal assumprions is computed by varying ope actuadal assumption wsed foc the valuation of the defined bencfit
obligation by one peroentage, keeping all ather acruarial assumptions conseant. The methods and ypes of assumptions used in prepaang the
sensitivity anafysis did not ehange compared to the prioe poriod.

{iif) Risk Exposure

WValuatkng are performed oo comin basic sct of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory fmework which may vary overtime, Thus,
the Company is cxposed to vanous tisks in providing the above gramity benefit which are as follows

Interest Rate csk : The plan exposcs the Company to the sk of &l in interest cates. A fall in insergst eates will result in an-increase in the
ultimate coat of providing the above binefie and will thus result in an Incréase in the value of the Lability (a5 shown in financial stmifements),
Liguidity Risk ; This is thi cak thor the Company is not able 1o moet the shecr-tweem granby payouors, This may srise due to non-gvailability of
cnnuph cash / cash equivalent to mecr the liabllines or holding of diquid asscts not being sold in time.

Salary Esgulation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan i caleulated with' the pssumption of salay increase mre of plan
pamicipants in furure. Deviaton m the fate of increase of salary o future for plan paricipants from the rte of incrcase in salary used 10
determini the

peczent value of obligaion will have 5 bearing on the plan's labilivg.

Demopraphic Riak : The Campany has vaed certain mogality and ansidon assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company i czposed
to the risk of actal experdenca murning out to be worge compared o the assumpHan.

Regulatary Risk : Gratuiry bencfit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment oF Grarlty Ast , 197200 amended from rime
to timc). There i » rsk of change in wepulations ogulnng higher pratuity payouts (g, Increase in the maxinum Jlimit on gty of fe.
20,00,000,

Sensih ity Proiects (Kalkatay i, South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes (o Financial Statements for the year ended 31t Macch, 2018

Moie31- Leases.
Operating Lease — Company as Lessor

I'he Company has given Mall premiises and 1T Park on operating lease 10 lessee. The Company enters into 5 - 13 years cancellable lease
apreementd. Minimum lease payments receivable in respect of these leases for non-cancellable period are as followe-

fin Lacs
Particulam As at Ad at Asat
3103208 31.03.2017 0LM.2016
Within ang year £,248.52 2819 391.03
After one year but not more than five years 10,288.54 54.84 353.03
16,536.80 353.0) T44.06
Note 32- Commitment and Contingencics
. Commitmenis
¥ in Lacs
As at Aspat As at
31.03.2018 3.03.2017 01.04.2016
a} Estimared amount of contracts remaming 0 be coeeuted on 1,184.52 1,682.25 20502
capital expenditure and aor provided for (et of advances)
b. Contingent Liabilities
Clairma against the Company not acknowledged as debs
¥in Laca
As at Ax ay Ag at
31.03.2018 31.03.2047 OL04.2016
Service Tax Demonds (MNet of Advances) 1,001.45 1,817.06 1,817.06
Empliyees State Insuence Demands (Mot of Advances) 9.62 0.62 9.62
Income Tax . 694,18 69418
Others 9159 : 3
Toral 1,102.45 2.520.86 2,520.86

e Company has been advised by its lawyers that aone of the clums are tenable and is therefore contesting the same and hence
has not been provided for in the books. The future cash flows an sccount of the sbove cannot be derermined unless the
judgements/dedisions are regeived from the ultimate judicial forums. Mo reimbursements is cxpected to arise to the Company in

repect of above cases.

YinLacy
As at TR Asar
3.03.2018 31032017  OL.04.2016
[ Guaranteos given

Apgainst Loans mken by o Subsidiary 3964103 35,254.50 1395170
Apinst Sales tax 51.84 10281 7322
Oithers 65274 557.12 537.12
Total 40,345.71 35,914.43 14,562.04

South City Projecls (Kolkata) L. South City Projecls wﬂ-
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0L TH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED

Nesee on Finamein Satvaieiaia ok e pidlir coded 3o Sarcli, 2018

ore 33 - Desclvsure in risspect of elated Paries pursuane to lnd A% 24
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED

Entideswhere Koy Mansgement
Parsiculam Subaidiaries Jolat ¥eniure Key Management Personnel Persvrinct wd their celatives have Texal
uignilicant infleence

30348 | ALOXAT | OLG4E | 0038 | AL0AST | OLOAIE | ALONIR | 3LOMMT | on0806 | 3LOSIE | ROaT | oumeads | 3nomIs Loy OLOLIE
Seing Pees ||| N — ] B, N - = 00 20 410 x z - 3001 L [.HB
Rexrrinerschon & Commission - T M I . - 14784 gREw| - - |- 1784 %39 0.1
Rendering of Servicss T B ) (¢ BT 27 N Mt ) e (e . 3 : = : wm mes|  wsm
Tnvertment - - el o T T e o | 5 5 . - 2 s | ne 0,10
 |Lom G BoMaT|  Altedn| Ak - . - - + EOM.67 2,17548 BERO7
tioan Recoived R T . ) LIGROO | 407200 | 265000 . . A L3800 407200 26300
Advaness Given L 2541 bl - 2 ) 4 - 1% 437 1552 . 006 . 02| Tmm| 8125
Advances for Purchase of Land Nt . v =i e P Sl Pt . 5 . = = = | . . = 1 _ 1
Advences for Purchases of Shaps - - 1166 - . - . - - . - - . = 1166
Advences for Property Devilopearat * LT N S O, I R T - 050 2170 | 15 0.5 T 5
Advances Written O4F . - .10 - - gz - H < o 5 - - | B
Advaness teesived foradle nf Flar = 5 B : ; : - | ama SO0 M0 20| sho 30
[Wocovery of Mecttic & Other Chagies = i 7 = |- : o - 74 [ [F] 03 na 8|
Infzrey Received 6RREd|  I1A3GH9| ZAarg| O . . s 8. . - 1200 1549 = TS (LR %)
Tntevent Paid . = = - : il 75.05 11564 23 1287 To44 3539 ssor| e LR %2
Receipt Tonanhs Los Given ) L7567 | 208752 |  35aRed - - - - - S0.00 . LIT5.67 2125152 356240
Repsyment 6f Loaa Reecved = . - - | - nRaop|  svmsen| rueoe| 0 . s LOA00 LHEW LS00 245100
| Rezeipt Towands Advinces given IO JomT| s I . 1354 T4 EDD 10 006 2 30389 7150 B
|Reperpment of Advance recsived touards e of fa R - W . - = . : 597.00 s - 5700 147.40 -
Eogemses Jocurind 13,75 1250 | izs| - 3 o - - - . . 1335 12 5 1258
| Receipt towands Advance given for purchascof fami | s - F it (NN N . S 219 . - - - [KL)
Frovision for Advence in Subsidisy - . 112 L e = > : . : E - | —
Copocte Gumniees Given NAA0 | N MERG| 1395010 - - - - : = . - - 2341080 21,30250 3,851 70

Balases a9 om 3103, 3018 — . | Al | i

A - Inveatenen 270620 |  270629| 26| - ; : . = = _ . . 370629 270628 | 280443
B Loan Giren —— IS | Asmies| 2gehdm| . . S - - - 0000 | 10000 15000 11,5ZL51 349084 2111548
€ - Laan Reesived = [Tl e e e - | tomea| ssoco| s e - e 100,00 250,00 E03.00
D - Advanes for Lazd : - . < | noans| 1 oaps]  12pdeG) 00 - - - o - 1.204,06 120408 L0406
E - Advaness far Propeny Development =1 =l ] . - - . - 51 24701 253 251 1701 prin]]

- Db for Weeovery of Elestisiny & Othens L = % _ . . i A - | . o - -
H - Adhmncey I'5d [ L4073 | ATRATE O . | . . 1981} 1634 1025 216 L35 4 1.001.50 LGBl _ 885

¥ - Advaces encsived : - ] Do e = - = - = = = =
G- Crodles v S e e R LI, eI [ SR L (T L g = E 20 B4 15
I - Aubrinice seeelved for the sale of Pl I A . | kel PR R - N I : %0 20 - 345.10 45250
- Tevision Tor advines in Subsidiasy o sen el g 2 _ T EFRLLL £79.10 679,41
L« Corpisrate Gissmmtoes Giten s480 | wagstm| 0 - | . -} .| - | 39,641.13 38,254.50 13,95L70
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Naotes (o Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

MNete 34 - Fair Value Hiersechy

CH

{b)

@

The table shown below analyscs finandial instroments caerded ar Gir valoe. The differear levels have been defined belowe-

Level 10 Quoted Prces {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assers or abilices:

Level 2 lapurs other than quoted paces included withun Level 1 thatare obseryable for the assot or Iu'bdlqr. cither dizectly {ie, pe

prices) or indirectly fe., denved from peices)

Level 30 Inputs far the asset or liability that arc not based on observable markee dam {unobservable inputs)

Financial Assctn and Liabilities measured at Fair Value st 31 March 2018 % inLacs
= T | Levell | Level2 | Leveld | Tomal
Financial Aggets sz s =t i
Investment at VDL B ) .
| In Debentures | . - =0 -
{ In Quoted units of Mundal funds 1 g - - | Wi
I In Quoted Hyuity Shares g ] BE.3 | - = ] 8831
In Quated Sharcs through PMS Yool Account | meso| - - | 11690
Financial Ayscts and Lisbilides measured at Fair Value at 31 March 2007
{ . Levell | Lovel2 | Level3 | Toml
{Financinl Asgets
ylavestment at IV TPL |
i In Debentues - - = = -
| inQuored units of Mutual funds ] | 3946213 - - | 3946213
_In Quored Equity Sharcs _ 230 - - 132.10
In Quoted Shares through PMS Pool Account 98.99 - - D899
Financial aupets and linbilities measured at fair value at 1 April 2016
; | Levell ~ LevlZ | Level3 | Toml
Financial Asseis | !
Investment at VDL | | i
In Debenmuires | - 76.50 = 76.50
In Quoted units of Murual funds 1569574 . - | 15495.74
In Quored Equity Shares 47439 - - | 41w
In Quoted ﬁ'hm through PMS Pool Account - . - ! -

Financial Instrumenis ot Ammortized Cost

The carrying amount of financial ggser and fnancal labilities measueed of amortsed cost in the financial statements are 2 reasonable
approximatinon of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the cirrying smounts would be sipnificanty different from

the values that woukd evontually be received or sorded

During the year theee has been no eranefer fom one level 1o another
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Motes to Financisl Statements for the year ended 318t March, 2018

Mote 35 - Financial Risk Management, Objectives and Policies

'The Company's prnerpal financial labilities, comprse of barmowings and rade payabice. The man puspote of these fancial lablities 5 o
finance the Company's fixed and working cipital sequiremints . The Company hna vanous financial assets auch aa trocde reccivables, founs,
mvestenents shor-ter depodit and essh & cash equivalmits , which de dircetly from it opcrations.

‘The Company is exposed to market sisk, coodit ik and Equidicy fsle The Company’s Board of Direciors ovirsets the oansgemisnt of these
risks and advists on financial nisks amd the appeopriate financial rsk govemants framiewodk for the Company, The Cempany's Boasd of
Dhrectons sssurey thas the Company’s financial nsk acovtes are govermed by approprite pelices and procedurs and that finenesl asks ore
identified, messured and enamaged in accordance with the Company’s policies and sk objectives,

The Beanl of Directom reviews and agroes peilicies fae manapng each of these rcks, which are summarneed below,
A Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that o countomparny Gils to ducharge its obligation to the Comprany.

The Comjrany’s exposire 10 crodit mk & influenced mainly by cash and cath equivalints, trade receivables and finandal ssetn measured at
amtorased oost.

The Company. continuodaly momtoss defaulls of customens and other counterpamcs and incorpontes this mfoomation into it credic sk
controds. Credit nek relied to cash and cash equvalenis and bank deposts & monuged by only sccepung highly rared banks and divernfymg
bank deposzts. Chher financia) gascte mearured ar amomzed cost inchides secunty deposiis, Loons given and others, Credst sk related oo these
other frmncial gsgets 5 managed by mondoding the recoverability of sach smounts continuosly, whils at the same ame intomal control grstem
 place ensare the amounts are within defined Rmies,

1) Credit Risk Management

L Credit Risk Rating

The Company wssesses and manages oredit rsk of finaneiad assers based on following ciepoties amved on the basis of assumptions, npas ond
lactom speafic to the chiss of finanoal siscw.

A Low Credic Risk

B, Moderate Credit nsk

€. 1high ervslit risk

’E_A:-a:t Group - _]‘I_}ﬂmanoT o | Frovision for Expected Credit Losa® |
{ I’Clshnndcd.ihnp.ﬁl‘lhlu,mh:rb:mkbdmn‘s, ﬁmomhmpnmduﬁ!ahﬂﬁxfcm:rxpmd_-
! Laover Crodit Risk Hnvestmenis, crekt loss

Ipang and other financal st _

Moderate Crodit Risk Leade recsivables, loans snd other financial assers “"}“;“;Wmd credit fosa /lif time cxpected
Hagh Ceedic Risk | Veade reccivables, boams and othes financaal asets Life Gme expected credit loss

*Bated on busncse envmonment in which the Company operates, & default on g fmandcsl aset @ conslderad when the counterpany falls to
reke papments within the agread dme period o per contract, Lov mice meflucting defoults are based om actual credit Joss cxperdtnice and
considening differenoes between current andd histodeal coonomic conditions,

MAsets are written off when there 5 no ressonable expectation of ricivery, such s & debtor decndng bankruprey or o ligation decided agandt
the Campany. ‘The Cormpany contimucs to mgage with partics whose balonges are written off and sttempts t enforee repapmont, Recoveries
Tmade drereeugnized i ptatement of prods and loss

{ e Mgt

ICmdi: Radng Pasticulurs 3032018 : 31.03.2017 U1.04.2016
Cash g eash equivalents, ather .

Low Credit Rlsk bank balances, invistments, loans 57,205.13 E3.630.12 43,3081.50
and other Arandal oo

| hgh Crodit Rask Loans 2nd ‘Trade Receivables 147124 IAW0E 146183

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid. south City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
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SOUTH CITY FRDJECTS (EOLKATA) LIMITED
Naizs to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

B. Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thar the Company will encounter difficulty in meetlng the cbligations associated with in financlal Rabilitics
theat are scttled by delivering cash or snother financal sssct, The Company™ approach to manaping liquidity # to omsu ad farag
passible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet fis Habilitics when they are duc

Mommgernent menitors rolling forcensts of the Company’s Biquidiry position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of cxpecicd
cash flows. The Company takes into secount the hquidity of the market in which the entity operates,

Marorities of Pinanclal Liabiitles

‘The rable betow anabes ths Company’s Financial Labilioss into relevant manmnty groupsngs: besod on ther contmetual matuntics

March 31, 2818 R
:;Pmiculm Lege than 1 year 1-5 yeara Mn;:?:us Total
Borowings 30,700.01 270781 | 157003 | H58685
Trade Pagshle 4,303.01 * 4.353.01
Security Deposits LE67.68 - 252037 | 430108

| Cither Financeal Liskilies 14,701.63 R e i L[ EL
‘March 31, 2017 i B

iParticulary Leas then 1 year 1-5 years MTHII::uS Tozal
Borrowings 21,6138 o lasMaE| 2E:Lm| MS5IAM
Trade Payable Sl . .t Geoa2
Securiry Deposits e841] o . 183641 | 251442
[Gther Financial Liablities 6,798.10 | : - | Gk
Aprill, 2016 . o
Irumr. Less than 1 year 15 years Mlore tha § Toul
Boorowings 1339276 15,1884¢ | - | msEL:
Trade Payable 3,236.88 : e L 328
Security Deponits 9614 — 4022411 411855 |
Oither Finangia) Lisbilinies 5 55547 -1 - | 555547
C. Market Rigk

& Interear Rate Rigk

The Comrprany has raben debd to fmance jes working eapieal, which evpoges it we uercst rie nsk. Bomowmps e anvanable mites expose the

Company 19 infenst s sk

Interest Rante Rk Expare

{Particulars 1 3LOG.2018 | 31032007 - OLO4.2016

Varable Rate Borrowing 1270399 16,991,710 17,485.65
Faxed Rate Borowing | 225288 175204 11,095,571
Iotesest Raue Sensitivicy

Pirafir or koss amd oty w sensitive to higherflower interrat cxpense from bomrowings 5 9 noult of chanpes i moencst .

Pamiculary [ Parch 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 |
‘ngeredt Seasitiviy® | g

Tecerest Rates increase by 100 bass ponty (12708 _ (169.92)]
[Itercar Rates decyrase by 100 bnss paines 12704 | 169.92

*Haoldhng all ether viriasblia conspnt

b. Price Risk

The Company’s expesure 1o price rsk arises from imvesmients held and elassificd 28 FVTPL or FVOCL o manage the price ritk arising from
investrnents, the Company divemifies its portfolio of ssets,

Sensitivity Analysls
Faniculars - March 3L, 2013 [ March 31, 2017 |
Frioe Scasitviry® ! |
Price incnase by 5o FVTTL 1060.15 108456 |
\Price decrease by St- IVTPL 1,969.15| 198480 |
[Poldngdlohervasibicrconsant oy Prcisots (Kolkata) Lid.  South City Projeots (Kolkata) Ltd.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KROLEATA) LIMITED
Motes o Financial Swrements for the year ended 318t March, 2018

Note 36 - Capital management

For the purpode of the Company's capital manegement, capital includes issued equity eapital, share premiuvm and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity baldecs of the pareat, The prmagy objective of the Company’s capital
managemént is to maximise the shazeholder wilue.

The Campany’s ebjectives when managing capital is 1o safeguacd continuity, malntaln o strong credit rating and
healthy capital miios in order ro support its business and provide adequare retum to shascholders through continuing
growth and moximise the shareholders value . The Caompany's overall strategy remgins unchanged from previous
year.The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-teem operating plans
which include capital and other stratepic investments, The funding requirements are met throuph o mivture of equity
Jnternal fund genecation and barrowed funds.. The Company’s policy it 10 use short teem and langterm bareowing 10
mest antcipated funding requirements. The Company moniters capitd on the basis of the net debt to equity mto. The
Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital cequirements. Net debr are long rerm and shost reom debts as
reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents). Equiry comprises share capil
ind free reserves (ol reserves excluding OCI). The following table summarires the capiral of the Company:

e | TinLacs
Asat As ar Asoi
31.03.2018  31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Batrowings 3498685 3451804 2858122
Cther Finzncial Tisbilines 19.362.85 931292 0,674.02
Trade Payables 4,393.01 5,604.29 323088
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents T0.80 628.69 385.16
Mer Debr 58,670.91 48,806.56  41,106.96
Total capital 38,760.06  40,468.81  33,14558
Capital and Net Debt 97435197 8927537 7425254
==
Gearing ratio 60.22% 54.67% 55.36%

South City Projects (Kalkata) Lid. South City Projects (Kolkata) Lia.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOQLEATA) LIMITED
Wotes to Financial Sratements for the year ended 315t March, 2018

Mote 37 - First-time adoption of Ind AS

These Bnancial saatements, for the year ended 31 Barch 2018, are the fist the Company hos prepared in acconrdance with Ind
AS,

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for penods ending on 31
March 2018, wopether with the compamtive pedod dats as ot and foe the year ended 31 March 2017, as descrbed in the
summary of significant accounting policics: In prepanog these financial smrementy, the Company's opening balanee sheet wais
preparcd as ar | Aprl 2016, the Company's-date of transidon to lod A3. This note cxplains the pancipal adjustments made
by-the Company in reetating its Tndian GAAP financial sttements; including the balance shocr s at 1 Apnl 2016 and the
financial scarements a5 at and for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Exemptions and exceptions applicd
Ind A5 101 allows firse-tme adopters cermin exemptions and mandatory cuceptions from the rerospectve application of
cirtain reguicements under Ind AR, The Company has applicd the following exemptions andl exceptions:

The Company has elected o messure all of it property, plant and cqudpmont amd inmngible assiesat thelr provious GAAR
earrying velue ax on the date of teansition. The weitten down value as por the Previous GAAP 23 on Aprl 1, 2016 has been
cunsidired as the Gross Block under Ind AS for respective dasses of sssets in accordance with Tnd AS 101- Firstetire
adeption of Indian Accounting Smodards.

The Company has eleeted to messure all of its investment in'subsidiacics and joint vennutos ar their provious GAAP carrymg
value in sccordance with Ind AS 101- Fisst-time adopton of Indian Accounting Standacds.

The catimates a1 1 Aprl 2016 and at 31 March 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates in sccordance with
Indizn GAAT (alter sdjustments to ellect any differences in sccounting policics) spart from TVTTPL = Mutual Funds
where application of Indian GAAP il not require estimation.

The catimates used by the Company 1o present these amounts in accordance with Ind A5 reflecr condiions ar 1 Apnt 2016
{Le the dare of maastion o Ind-AS) and 25 of 31 March 2017,

Ind A5 107 requircs an ontiy 1o assess classification and mesurement of Gnancial assets on the bois of the ficts and
circumstances that exist ot the dare of tmnsition to Ind AS in sccordsnce with Ied AS 101- Fiest-time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standarda
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Muotes to Financial Sttemencs for the year ended  31ut Mosch, 2018

Moie 38.1 - Effect of the Transition 1o Lod AS

Reconcilistions of the Company's balance sheews prepared under Indiza GAAP and Ind AS ax of Apel 1, 2006 wod March 31, 2017 aod reconcilintion of
the Company’s Staiement of Profit nnd Loss for the year cuded March 31, 2016 prepared ia accondance with Indisn GAAP and [nd AS are presented

below,
¥ in Lacs
Total
Particutars Total Qther Equity Comprehensive
Inoome Remarks
3L0A201T  ILOA.2016 2016-17
Balance of Othes Equity/Net profitunder Indiag| 4959100 3145000 6071,69
GAAP ' T '
Emtmmu:
et of Bifeetive Intcrese on Long Teom B4&G 129.08 ({532 Under  Indign GAAP, wanmaction codi incumed 0
Bomowing connection with borowinge are amertded upfiont and
chargrd to the Smtement of Profit or Loss for the peiod.
Under Ind AS, transaction custs ae included m the inioal
recognition amount of fnancial linbility snd changed
Statement of Proft or Loss using the effective interest
|mzthod
Fakr value/amutisation cost of Invesoments in 240795 1,115.23 1,29272 |Under Indisn GAAD, the company accounted for loa

|accordance with lnd AS 109

term inwosments an invesmnt measured ot cost lem
provision {or other than tempomey dimbnuton i the
wilue of investments, Under Tnd A5, the company s
designated soch invesmments a8 FVIPL investment. Ind
AS roquines FVIPL investments to be measused ar fi
value At the due of mmasition to Ind AS, difference
betworn the instoments fair value and fndsan GAAP
carrying amount has becn recogndsed a3 a0 sepomie
cormponont of cquity, in the Retalned caming reserve; net
of related deforred taxes,

MNet Profit us per IND AS

731509

under Ind AS

Belance of Equity/Tetal comprehensive income 40,014,560

32,695.51

TA15.09

Nate 382 « Reconcilinton of caah flows for ihe year ended March 31, 2017
“Ihee rransition from erstwhile Indisn GAAD o Ind AS has nor made & materil impacy on the smrement of cuah fowes,

rein City Projents (Kalkats) Lic.
R . ey
il i 1B

R -

A=z rins

soulh City Projects {@I‘ﬁatﬁ} Lic.

Nlracinr




South City Projects (Folkats) Limiled
Moies 1o Financial Statements for the yearended st Macch, 2018

Watz 39 - Sepment Information

1. 'Mie Company has diteloded business seprment oy the primary segment. The Company s collectively onganised inta follovang buslness sogments namely:
{a) Rl eummte projorey ; () Rental Activines,

Sexments have been identified an repontable segmenty by the Company's chief operating decigdon maker ("COLM™). Scgment profit amoun are evaluated
replary by the Board, which has been identificd au the CODM, in deading how to alleenre resources and in assessing performance.

Sepment Revenue, Resules, Astets and Liabilitics include thie réspective amoints identifisble io cach of the segmicnts and smount allocated on o rasanable
Lasis. Unpliocared expendine coasisty of common expendituee inctired for all the sepmenits and expenses incurved 3t compomaie level. The ausets and
liabiliney that cinnot be allscated berwoen the sepricnts ore shown as unallocated ¢orporate sssers and Habilites respectively,

2. The sccounting policies of the reparnble segmenty are the same as the Company's accgunting polices deserilid in Mete 3. Scgment profie (Eamiags
beforo interest, depreciation and amomization, and tax) amednts are evaluated segulady by the Boand that has been identified as ie CODM in deciding how
i allocate resourcs and in assessing pedormancs. The Company’s financing (ncluding fnanee costs and finance jncome) and income xes are reviewed
on an oversll basis and are ot allocared 1o openating segmentd

X The Company's activitics are restricted within India and henee w0 mpamie prograpbicl sepment disclosure In conpideced  necessary.

4, The not - expenses and i income, which are not threatly aurnhutable 1o a parbculor Business  Scgment, are shown s pnallocsted comomre

5 Assets wnd Lisbilities that can not bé allocated between the Sopmonts afe shown as 8 part of wiallocasd corporte asecty and Eabilites
respectively,

6. ‘The Company does niot have any major customer Le. Revenue from rangactons with a single exiemal customer does oot amount to 10% or more of

the Company's Revenue.

Tne following mble presents rovenue and profit informarion for the Cﬂmpﬂ.ny's operanng-scgment for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

i —= — Tin Lace
Farticulars Real Ewiate Projecis Rental Activitcs Unallacated Tolsl |
= 2017-18 201617 2017-18 2016-1F 201718 201617 201718 2016-17
Revenue _ !
|'T'oral Estremal Revenoe 314967 1593486 5542 44 991408 - - 869212 25,848.94 |
| inter Scpment Bevenue . - - - - % . |
Total Revenue i 3,149.67 | 15934.86 5,542.44 5,514.08 - - B.69212 | 2584594
| I

Results - - - - - | - - -
‘Serment Results 15796 | 260270 El4.64 716037 . - §12.61 0,763.07
iUnaJIu:nred Corporate Hxpeics e - - - 1444 74.88 144.34 T4.88
'Oporating Peofit/ (loss) 157.96 | 2,602.70 El4.64 | 7,16037 (12434) (74.88) B28.27 | 9,688.18 |
'Other Income 1,835.67 20.88 105.24 11284 | - - 1,940.90 13372 |
[Unalloeared Other Income = - - - | 400176 2637050 4000767 263703 |
Intecesr ncome .l 313 - ! 694 | - - - | 10.07
Unallocated Intereat lncame | - - - . - 216833 . 2168.33
Financial Expenscs ' n - 95E18 |  1,195.83 | . . 95818 |  1,195.83
Unallocated Financial Lxpenses | - - - - 1 969743 269058| 269743 269054 |
Profit /{loss) Before Tox 107241 | 2607.06 (9E9.29)) 499750 1,149.34 2.035.02 213247 5,630.58
Current Tax ) - - - - 61381 1,700.00 01381 1,700.00
Deferred Tax - - - - 19851 616,33 198.51 616,35 |
Incume Tax of Earlive ¥ e s | - - - 53.38 - 53.88 -
Net Profit/ (Tows) after Tax 1,972.41 260706 1 (95929 4,997.50 2834 (28133 126627 7,323.23 |

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lid. South City Projects(Kolkata) Lid.
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The fulkwing mhle prosents asset and Habilizes infisrmation foe the Company's dpomting sogment for the year ended Maech 31, 2018 and March 31, 217 and Apdl 1, 2016

| Panicutam E | Real Bawarc Projecis Development |~ Heaml Actvities | Unalocawd | ]
T B 31-Mar18 | 31-Map17 | 0l-Apri6| 3i-Mari8 | 31-Mar17 | OLApr16| 3i-Marid | 31-Mari7 | 0L-Apeis| 31-Marid | 51Mari7 | DLApel6
Segment Asscrs L | 1207696 | 3660574 | 4351775 | wgisoeo | 3sssedi| 350z o SRS = |” 22mes05| tsas215| 7854502
auumununllmﬁﬂu_q Masere = - T e o = | _T%159.86 1740841 ) 1088886 | 7919286 | 1740841 | 1083856
Total Assers . | 120698 | 3660874 - | i08s09 | 3585641 - | m19986| m4osat] - | iozmesi| 928056 59,433.68
(Scgment Tsbilities | i2i6r09|  731865| 1683712] 1081809| 1410168| 1520004 . | - | .| 201918| 2142033| 3210776
Unallocated Compocate Lisbilises | - - : - = - | 4042411 | 3098556 2418004 | 4042411 3098556| 2418034
Total Liabilities | 1230009| T7MBA5) - | 10,1809 | 14,0068 - | 4042aM1) 3058556 @ - | 63M320| 5240589 5628810
Capital Iixpeaditune Tncureed N = . 711836 gl -1 | = | = s FTON -

Unaltecyed Capital Bxpenditure Incurmd . - - . - - a9 4 2352 Mo T4 .82
Depreciation and Amorikstion expeise 2122 19.66 20484  9%0099| 108681 | 137002 10,64 490 516 98285 | 1,11137 | 139582
Nowe 40:

All Rgures arc in Rupers [akhs. Figeres marked with (%} are below the rounding off nomm sdopted by the Company.

Note 41:

The Company has asscesed ite Investment in Profonmee Share of AA Infrapmoperdes Mt 14d. ta be s Compound Grandal Instromients and accordingly sphit the same 20 Ipvestment in Equity [nstnements of
IME 123295 Ines and Investment in Debt Inrtroment af INR 139205 e

Maote 42 - Standards [seued but oot effectve

The amendments (o standands that are izsued, bot aot yer effecave, up 1o the date of isumaes of the Company’s fnanonl sarements wre dieclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
spplicable, when they become eficctive.
The Mimistry af Corponmie Affairs (MOA) has tsmecd the Componies {(Indinn Accounting Standanls) Amendment Rules, 2017 znd Companies (Indan Aceomnting Standsrdd) Amendmenr Rules, 2018
amending the follontng standicd:
Tod AS 115 Revenue from Coatmets with Customent The Company is currently cvuluating the impact of dnplemionttion of Tad A 115 "Revenve from Coatmen with Costomers™ which is applicabile to i

w.ef Apnl 01, 2018 However, hased on the cvahiation doac 8o far and based on the armngement that the Company hag with ite costomens for mle of its prodoces, the implementation of Ind AS 115 will not

liaew any signibicant reenguition and mestrement bopact. Howevier, there will be additonal preacatation and disclosurs roquirement which will be provided i the next year's financial starements.

Amentlments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Defermed T Asdets for Unnlised Losses The smemdmionts cladfy that an ontity needs te consider whithey tas b ristrmid the sourss of mable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of thar daluchble emporacy difference. Furthermere, the amendments provide gudance on how an cotity should determine future maable profits and oplan the
arcumstanecs in which sasable prfit may incdude the recovery af some assets for more than ther arrying smeunt

These amendments are elfocthe for snnial petiods beginning on or aficr | Apdl 2018, These smendmintr ar: not expetted (0 have any impact on the Compaoy 3¢ the Company has no dodoctibles tomporary
differcnicis o assets that are in the séope of the amendments.

Appondix B e Ind AS 21 Foreign Currcncy Transactions and Advance Consideninon “The Appendix clanifies thar, in determining the spor exchange rare 1o use on inital recognition of the rehated asse,
&pense of ineome (o paa af i) en the Jerecognition of = non-moncary msct of non-mongary Eability rlating to sdvance eomsideration, the date of the ranscion = the dite on which an eniry initally
recogmides the non-monctary assef of nodsmanctary labiliny adsing from the sdvance considematinon. 1 ¢here are multple payments of recciprs in adiance, then the ensity must determing the iansction dage for
cach paymeit o recsipt of advance condtderarion,

The Appenidiz s cffoctive for annu] perods beginning on or afeer 1 Apnl 2018, Hewever, stnee the Company's comen) practics isin ling with the Tnierpretation, the Company docs niol expeet any offect on
w0 financial spatemnents.

Amendments o Ind AS 112 Disdosure of [nterests in Other Entifics, Ind AS 40 Investmient Property and Ind AS 28 Invetimenis in Associics 2ad Joint Vennues ane not appheable mo the Company.
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